Public Document Pack

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
Meeting to be held in the Civic Hall, Leeds on
Friday, 25th June, 2021 at 2.00 pm

MEMBERSHIP

G Almass
P Grahame
K Maqsood
(Chair)
P Truswell
J Illingworth

J Bentley

M Foster
P Harrand
J Shemilt

This meeting will be held at the Civic Hall, Leeds. Due to current restrictions arising from
the pandemic, there will be very limited capacity in the public gallery for observers of the
meeting. This meeting will be webcast live via the link below, however if you would like to
attend to observe in person, please email (FacilitiesManagement@leeds.gov.uk) to
request a place, clearly stating the name, date and start time of the committee and include
your full name and contact details, no later than 24 hours before the meeting begins.
Please note that the pre-booked places will be allocated on a ‘first come, first served’
basis and once pre-booked capacity has been reached there will be no further public
admittance to the meeting. On receipt of your request, colleagues will provide a response
to you.Please Note - Whilst the rates of infection have come down, Coronavirus is still
circulating in Leeds. Therefore, even if you have had the vaccine, if you have Coronavirus
symptoms: a high temperature; a new, continuous cough; or a loss or change to your
sense of smell or taste, you should NOT attend the meeting and stay at home, and get a
PCR test . For those who are attending the meeting, please bring a face covering, unless
you are exempt.
Note to observers of the meeting: To remotely observe this meeting, please click on the
‘View the Meeting Recording’ link which will feature on the meeting’s webpage (linked
below) ahead of the meeting. The webcast will become available at the commencement of
the meeting.
https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MId=11570&Ver=4

Agenda compiled by:
Governance Services
Civic Hall

John Grieve,
Governance
Services Tel
(0113) 37 88662
Produced on Recycled Paper

1

AGENDA

Item
No
1

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS
To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 15.2 of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the
press and public will be excluded).
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 15.2, written
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before
the meeting)

2

EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
1

To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.

2

To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3

If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:RESOLVED – That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:-

2

Item
No
3

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
LATE ITEMS
To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration
(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes)

4

DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY
AND OTHER INTERESTS’
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of
the Members’ Code of Conduct.

5

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive apologies for absence (If any)

6

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
To consider and approve the minutes of the
previous meeting held on 15th March 2021.

(Copy attached)
7

MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES
To consider any matters arising from the minutes.

3

7 - 16

Item
No
8

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
GRANT THORNTON ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER
2019/20

17 40

To consider a report by the Chief Officer Financial
Services which informs the Committee that in
accordance with proper audit practice, Grant
Thornton (External Auditors) have issued their
Annual Audit Letter 2019/20, which provides a
summary of the key audit findings for the financial
year.
Appended to the report is the Annual Audit Letter
(Appendix 2). The letter confirms that Grant
Thornton were able to provide an unqualified
opinion on the council’s financial statements for
2019/20 and an ‘except for’ opinion on the
council’s arrangements to secure value for money
for 2019/20.

(Report attached)
9

GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PROGRESS
REPORT

41 62

To consider a report by the Chief Officer Financial
Services which informs the Committee that Grant
Thornton (LCC External Auditors) have provided
an Audit Progress Report on their 2020/21 audit
which includes their proposed timetable for the
2020/21 audit and their proposed audit fee.

(Report attached)
10

INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT
FEBRUARY TO APRIL 2021
To consider a report by the Chief Officer Financial
Services intended to provide a source of
assurance that the internal control environment is
operating as intended through a summary of the
Internal Audit activity for the period from February
to April 2021. The report highlights the incidence of
any significant control failings or weaknesses.

(Report attached)

4

63 76

Item
No

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
COUNTER FRAUD UPDATE REPORT

11

77 84

To consider a report by the Chief Officer Financial
Services which sets out details of the counter fraud
activities undertaken by the Internal Audit service
between the period December 2020 and March
2021.

(Report attached)
WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22

12

85 94

To consider and approve the Committee’s Work
Programme for the 2021/ 22 period.

(Copy attached)
10.4(3)

13

PSN CERTIFICATION - UPDATE REPORT

95 106

To consider a report by the Data Protection Officer
which seeks to provide an update on Leeds City
Council’s readiness for Public Services Network
(PSN) compliance submission.
(Please note that Appendices 1 & 2 to this report are
designated as being exempt from publication under
the provisions of Access to Information Procedure
Rule 10.4 (3))

(Report attached)

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

14

To note that the next meeting will take place on
Friday, 30th July 2021 at 2.00pm in the Civic Hall,
Leeds.

Third Party Recording
Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those not present to see or hear the
proceedings either as they take place (or later) and to enable the reporting of those
proceedings. A copy of the recording protocol is available from the contacts named on the
front of this agenda.
Use of Recordings by Third Parties– code of practice
5

Item
No
a)

b)

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No

Any published recording should be accompanied by a statement of when and
where the recording was made, the context of the discussion that took place, and a
clear identification of the main speakers and their role or title.
Those making recordings must not edit the recording in a way that could lead to
misinterpretation or misrepresentation of the proceedings or comments made by
attendees. In particular there should be no internal editing of published extracts;
recordings may start at any point and end at any point but the material between
those points must be complete.

6

Agenda Item 6
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Monday, 15th March, 2021
PRESENT:

Councillor A Scopes in the Chair
Councillors J Bentley, P Harrand,
J Illingworth, P Grahame, M Harrison,
J Taylor and P Truswell
Linda Wild – Independent Member

83

Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents
There were no appeals against the refusal of inspection of documents.

84

Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public
There were no items identified where it was considered necessary to exclude
the press or public from the meeting due to the confidential nature of the
business to be considered.

85

Late Items
There were no late items of business identified.

86

Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other Interests’
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest made at the
meeting.

87

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor B Garner.

88

Minutes of the Previous Meeting
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 8th February 2021 were
submitted for comment/ approval.
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 8th February
2021 were accepted as a true and correct record.

89

Matters Arising
Internal Audit Update Report September to November 2020 (Minute No.61
referred) Flood Alleviation Scheme Stage 1 - Review into its operational
readiness. The Chair asked if the requested information around the
mechanism to review the technical aspects of the scheme had become
available yet.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 28th June 2021

Page 7

The Head of Audit informed Members said the requested information would
be circulated to Members once it became available.
Annual Assurance Report on Arrangements In Relation To Customer
Contact and Satisfaction (Minute No.75 referred). The Chair asked if the
requested information about the distribution of calls by wait time and the
percentage of complaints that were upheld by the Ombudsman, were
available yet
The Principal Audit Manager reported that the requested information would be
circulated to Members once it became available.
Members asked that Chief Officer Customer Access & Welfare, be invited
back to Committee in June should the requested information be not
forthcoming in the interim
Governance Arrangements for Devolution (Minute No. 76). The Principal Audit
Manager reported that the feedback provided by this Committee at the last
meeting had now been shared with partner authorities.
Annual Assurance Report on Planning Decision Making and Enforcement
Arrangements (Minute No.35 referred). In providing an update, the Principal
Audit Manager said following feedback from the Chair of this Committee, the
draft protocol had been referred back to the Chief Planning Officer for further
review.
The Principal Audit Manager undertook to ask the Chief Planning Officer to
provide an update to committee.
In offering comment the Chair said the protocol had to be sufficiently robust to
be effective.
90

Annual Information Governance Report, including the Annual Report of
the Caldicott Guardian
The Director of Resources and Housing and the Director of Adults and Health
submitted a report which presented the Annual Information Governance
Report which sought to provide assurance on the arrangements in place
associated with Information Governance.
Commenting on Data Access Requests Members queried if consideration had
been given to the use of automated software to assist with Freedom of
Information Requests (FOI’s)
The Data Protection Officer reported that the Service was undertaking a
review of the (FOI) process with a view to making the process more effective/
efficient.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 28th June 2021

Page 8

Members were informed that sweeps across the LCC network with a single
search engine were not technically possible yet.
Members were of the view that an efficient search engine would make a huge
difference to productivity and a uniform process across the Council was
important.
Members asked if there was a timeframe for “getting to where you want to be
in terms of FOI request” and was there any type of financial penalty for delays
in responding to FOI requests.
In responding the Data Protection Officer said the timescale for implementing
the actions was six months, but some actions may be completed sooner. In
respect of any financial penalties associated with FOI requests, it was
reported that fines were not usually imposed if the statutory deadline were not
met, and that the ICO had indicated that action would not be taken in respect
of breach of timescales during the period of the pandemic
Referring to PSN Certification, Members queried if the project remained on
track.
The Data Protection Officer reported that the 2020 PSN submission was
deferred with Cabinet Office due to COVID-19 pressures. An action plan,
documenting all the outstanding work to be completed and a firm submission
date of July 2021, was submitted to the Cabinet Office on 31st December
2020. This action plan was signed off by the Chief Digital and Information
Officer. The project remains on track for completion July 2021.
The Chair acknowledged and thanked Officers for the benchmarking exercise
included within the report as part of the Caldicott Guardian monitoring
process.
The Data Protection Officer thanked the Committee for requesting this
benchmarking exercise which had provided valuable insight for the service.
RESOLVED –

91

(i)

That the contents of the report be noted

(ii)

To accept the assurances provided by the Data Protection Officer
as to the Council’s approach to information management and
governance

Annual Treasury Management Governance Report
The Chief Officer Financial Services submitted a report which presented the
Annual Treasury Management Governance Report which outlined the
governance framework for the management of the Council’s Treasury
Management function.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 28th June 2021

Page 9

Addressing the report the Chief Officer Financial Services officer explained
that the Annual Report provided assurance to Members that the Treasury
Management (TM) function was operating within its governance framework
and fully complied with the current CIPFA Code of Practice, the Prudential
Code and the revised guidance notes for practitioners issued in 2017.
Members were informed that since the last update all borrowings and
investments undertaken had been in accordance with the approved
governance framework. Treasury Management continued to operate within
the governance framework and also used additional market intelligence and
information gathered from a variety of sources which were integral to
protecting the authority from undue risk in the financial and money markets.
Members noted that Internal Audit had provided substantial assurance on the
control environment and compliance in their 2019/20 audit report.
One Member reported that in a few weeks-time the combined authority would
take over the management of the Police Budget, so would LCC Finance be
responsible for monitoring the treasury management affairs of the Police
Authority.
Members were informed that the Treasury Management Team were in
discussion with WYCA to understand the implications and requirements of the
Treasury Management Function going forward once the Police and Crime
Commission combines with WYCA. At the moment current arrangements
would continue.
Referring to Paragraph 3.9 of the submitted report, Members asked if there
was any further information in respect of the LOBO loans with Barclays Bank
and the decision of the High Court to have the claim by Leeds City Council
together with 7 other local authorities struck out
Head of Service, Resources & Housing, reported that the Council along with
the seven other Councils who made the claim were considering the position
both internally and with the Councils solicitors to determine their options in
light of the judgement. The Chair would be advised of the outcome of these
deliberations in due course.
RESOLVED –
(i)

(ii)

92

To note that Treasury Management continues to adhere to its
governance framework including the CIPFA Code of Practice, the
Prudential Codes 2017 and revised CIPFA guidance notes issued
in 2018.
To accept the assurances provided by the Chief Officer Financial
Services that all borrowing and investments undertaken had been
compliant with the governance framework.

Annual Assurance Report on the Financial Management and Control
Arrangements and Compliance with the Chief Finance Officer Protocol
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 28th June 2021

Page 10

The Chief Officer Financial Services submitted a report which sought to
provide assurance that the Council had in place effective and robust
arrangements for financial planning, financial control and other financial
management activities which were fit for purpose, up to date and embedded
across the organisation.
The report also sets out the current arrangements for complying with the
requirements of the Chief Finance Officer’s protocol that were set out in
Section 5k of Council’s constitution.
Members referred to the role of the Chief Officer Financial Services,
paragraph 3.1.6 of the submitted report and queried if the communication/
meetings as referred to were undertaken on a regular basis.
The Chief Officer Financial Services confirmed that communication/ meetings
with Members and senior officers was carried out on a regular basis and that
no issues had been discussed which needed to be brought to the attention of
the committee.
Members sought further details about the Fair Funding Formula, paragraph
3.6.3 of the submitted report and queried if any information had been received
which suggested how the formula may impact on the authority.
The Deputy Chief Officer Financial Services said the introduction of the Fair
Funding Formula had been delayed due to the Coronavirus Pandemic, no
further information had been received within the last 18 months. Members
were informed that should any further information be received it would be
factored into the Medium Term Financial Strategy.
It was suggested by Members that it may be prudent to factor in potential risk.
In responding the Chief Officer Financial Services said that forecasting for a
number of matters where there was a level of certainty in relation to impact on
the authority’s financial position such as business rates reductions and areas
of employment and the economy were already undertaken. Other matters
would be built in to the strategy as they come forward.
The Council’s external auditors were invited to comment, and noted that these
matters had been a key part of the value for money review. It was confirmed
that the Council was not out of step with similar authorities in its approach. It
was noted that the new audit approach would require more detail in relation to
the Council’s financial assumptions and estimates in future years. Further
details would be given at the June meeting.
RESOLVED – To accept the assurances of the Chief Officer (Financial
Services) that the appropriate systems and procedures are in place to ensure
that there is sound financial management and control across the Authority, in
accordance with the arrangements set out in the Chief Finance Officer
protocol, as set out in Section 5k of the Council’s constitution
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 28th June 2021

Page 11

93

Internal Audit Update Report December 2020 to January 2021
The Chief Officer Financial Services submitted a report which provided a
summary of the Internal Audit activity for the period December to January
2021 and to highlight incidence of any significant control failings or
weaknesses.
The Head of Audit explained that 12 audit reviews were finalised, no issues
were identified that would necessitate direct intervention by this Committee,
however, two audits had resulted in a limited or no assurance opinion:
Housing Leeds – Lettings
Primary School Follow Up 2
Referring to the Housing Leeds - Lettings process, paragraphs 3.7 and 3.8 of
the submitted report and the identification of control weaknesses, Members
asked if management were able to access the system to obtain relevant
performance information during the period in which reports were unavailable
through the system. Members also asked if a lessons learned exercise had
been carried out following the implementation of the new system.
The Head of Audit advised that further information would be shared with the
Committee, and Members asked if the issue could be drawn to the attention of
the Chair, Scrutiny Board, Environment, Housing and Communities.
The Head of Audit confirmed the requested information would be referred to
the appropriate Scrutiny Chair.
Members referred to the Fire Safety Management of Council Tenanted
Properties, paragraph 3.12 of the submitted report noting that the
recommendations had not been completed.
Members requested if they could be provided with for a copy of the
outstanding recommendations
The Head of Audit confirmed that the requested information would be
circulated to Members.
The Independent Member queried whether information was reported to the
Committee in respect of Internal Audit performance on the completion of
audits within timescale and budget, and progress against the Audit Plan.
The Head of Audit advised that a review of performance monitoring
information is currently ongoing within the section.
The Chair also confirmed that the Committee receives regular information on
the work completed by Internal Audit.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 28th June 2021

Page 12

One Member raised the issue of “unintended consequences” and asked how
would a policy, which was not working well be identified and how would it be
corrected.
The Chair suggested that planned policies were required to comply with
specific rules, there was also a role for Scrutiny Boards to investigate such
issues.
The Head of Audit said some horizon scanning was undertaken and other
local authorities were active in sharing potential problems.
RESOLVED –

94

(i)

To receive the Internal Audit Update Report covering the period
from December to January 2021 noting the work undertaken by
Internal Audit during the period covered by the report;

(ii)

To note that there had been no limitations in scope and nothing had
arisen to compromise the independence of Internal Audit during the
reporting period.

Internal Audit Plan 2021-22
The Chief Officer Financial Services submitted a report presented the
proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2021-22 for review and approval.
The report also included a summary of the basis for the plan which had been
developed in consultation with senior management.
Addressing the report the Head of Audit explained that the Corporate
Governance and Audit Committee had responsibility for reviewing the
adequacy of the Council’s corporate Governance arrangements.
Members were informed that the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
(PSIAS) required the Head of Internal Audit to deliver an annual internal audit
opinion and report that can be used by the Council to inform its governance
statement. The standards also refer to the need for a risk-based plan to take
into account the requirement to produce an annual internal audit opinion
which includes input from management and the Corporate Governance and
Audit Committee. Standard 2020 requires that internal audit plans are
communicated to senior management and the Committee for review and
approval.
It was reported that the Terms of Reference for the Corporate Governance
and Audit Committee include the consideration of the Council’s arrangements
relating to internal audit requirements and specifically, reviewing and
approving the risk-based plan and any additional significant work.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 28th June 2021

Page 13

Referring to resources section of the report and the requirement to provide
audit services to external clients (Paragraph 3.3.1 referred) Members queried
the type of organisation who use the LCC Audit Service.
Members were informed that organisations with close association with the
City Council such as Leeds Grand Theatre and Opera House and BITMO
were the type of organisation who would seek the assistance of the audit
service.
One Member referred to Commercial Investments and queried if there was
likely to be any future risk around Council processes following devolution.
Members were informed that Commercial Investment was on the reserve list
for audits on a risk basis, but officers would continue to provide a watching
brief.
Members asked what arrangements would be made for liaison with the new
West Yorkshire mayoral authority from May.
The Head of Internal Audit explained that existing arrangements for liaison
between Heads of Audit in South and West Yorkshire would continue to
enable networking and sharing of ideas and concerns where relevant between
authorities audit functions.
Referring to other assurance areas (Paragraph 3.3.2 referred) Members
sought details as to how second line assurance was monitored.
Members were informed that assurance maps were used within the Audit
Team as part of the planning process. It was reported that a review of the
assurance mapping process would be undertaking in summer 2021.
Members asked if “data analytics” was used in the internal audit process.
Members were informed that data analytics was used on individual audits and
more widely, and that there were plans to develop and expand the continuous
audit testing programme.
RESOLVED – That the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2021-22 be
approved.
95

Annual Report of Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
The Chief Officer Financial Services submitted a report which sought approval
of the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee’s Annual Report to
Council for the 2020/21 Municipal year.
Addressing the report the Principal Audit Manager explained the purpose of
the Annual Report was to reflect the work undertaken by this Committee in the
2020/21 Municipal year and sets out the assurances received to support the
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 28th June 2021

Page 14

Committee in carrying out the functions delegated to it in respect of approval
of the Annual Governance Statement and Statement of Accounts.
Members noted those areas in which the work of the Committee had, through
robust challenge and critical consideration, added value to the Council’s
arrangements for governance, audit and risk.
RESOLVED –

96

(i)

To approve the draft Annual Report as attached at Appendix A of
the submitted report

(ii)

To authorise the Chair to sign the report on behalf of the
Committee.

Work Programme
The Chief Officer Financial Services submitted a report which set out the
proposed Work Programme for 2021/22.
Members were informed that some adjustment to the Work Programme may
be required in the future due to a number of key work requirements remained
outstanding. In particular it was expected that the statutory date for publication
of final audited accounts for 2020/21 would be 30th September.
Mr Gareth Mills (Grant Thornton) suggested that it was the view of most audit
firms that this date would be extremely challenging to achieve, and it could not
be guaranteed.
Members expressed concern with the response received and were of the
opinion that the necessary resources should be allocated by GT to ensure the
audit work was completed by this statutory deadline.
RESOLVED – That the proposed Work Programme be approved.

97

Date and Time of Next Meeting
RESOLVED – To note that the next meeting will take place on Monday, 28 th
June 2021 at 10.00am

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 28th June 2021

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Report author:

Mary Hasnip

Tel:

3789384

Grant Thornton Annual Audit Letter 2019/20
Date:

25th June 2021

Report of: the Chief Finance Officer
Report to: Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐Yes ☒No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐Yes ☒No

What is this report about?




In accordance with proper audit practice, Grant Thornton have issued their Annual Audit
Letter 2019/20. This gives a summary of the key audit findings which were reported to the
Committee during their audit of the 2019/20 financial year. The Annual Audit Letter is
attached as Appendix 2. The letter confirms that Grant Thornton were able to provide an
unqualified opinion on the council’s financial statements for 2019/20 and an ‘except for’
opinion on the council’s arrangements to secure value for money for 2019/20.
Appendix 1 also reports to the Committee the outcome of the audit of the council’s Housing
Benefit Subsidy claim for 2019/20, which is audited by Mazars.

Recommendations
a) Members are asked to receive the Annual Audit Letter and note the conclusions arising from
the 2019/20 external audit process.

Page 17

Why is the proposal being put forward?
1

Under the Committee’s terms of reference members are required to consider the Council’s
arrangements relating to external audit, including the receipt of external audit reports.

What impact will this proposal have?
Wards Affected:
Have ward members been consulted?

2

☐Yes

☒No

The report summarises the outcome of the 2019/20 external audit process, including the
audit recommendations which were made and the actions agreed.

What consultation and engagement has taken place?
3

The Annual Audit Letter does not raise any issues requiring consultation or engagement
with the public, ward members or Councillors.

What are the resource implications?
4

Grant Thornton’s Annual Audit Letter includes their opinion as to whether the Council has
proper arrangements for securing value for money during 2019/20.

What are the legal implications?
5

Under Section 4 of the Code of Audit Practice for public sector bodies, external auditors are
required to issue an Annual Audit Letter summarising the main audit findings in relation to
the financial year.

What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
6

Grant Thornton identified financial standing and the potential impact of Brexit as ongoing
areas of risk to the council, and recommended that the council should continue to keep the
level of its reserves and the potential for reducing expenditure under review. The review of
these areas is an integral part of the Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy
processes.

Does this proposal support the council’s 3 Key Pillars?
☐Inclusive Growth
7

☐Health and Wellbeing

☐Climate Emergency

The report relates to the council’s underlying financial position rather than to any particular
aspect of service delivery.

Options, timescales and measuring success
a) What other options were considered?
8

The report summarise the outcome of the 2019/20 external audit process. It does not relate
to a proposed course of action requiring options.

b) How will success be measured?
Page 18

9

The report is a backward looking report which summarises the outcome of the 2019/20
external audit process. Grant Thornton will provide an update on the recommendations
made for 2019/20 within their 2020/21 audit reporting.

c) What is the timetable for implementation?
10 The report relates to the 2019/20 financial year.

Appendices
11 Appendix 1 outlines the main issues arising.
12 Appendix 2 is Grant Thornton’s Annual Audit Letter

Background papers
13 None.

Page 19

Appendix 1 – 2019/20 audit process - Main Issues
1. Annual Audit Letter
1.1. The annual audit letter provides a summary of the findings from Grant Thornton’s audit
reports which have been issued in relation to the 2019/20 year.
1.2. During the year Grant Thornton issued an unqualified opinion on the 2019/20 Statement of
Accounts. Grant Thornton’s review of the council’s Annual Governance Statement found
that it was consistent with their understanding of the council. The Annual Audit Letter
summarises their audit approach and findings in relation to the audit of the financial
statements.
1.3. The Annual Audit Letter notes that at the date it was issued, Grant Thornton’s audit of the
council’s WGA (Whole of Government Accounts) return for 2019/20 remained in progress,
and that auditors are not permitted to certify that the audit for a financial year is completed
until the WGA audit has been concluded. The Council’s WGA audit has since been
completed and the Council’s final WGA return was submitted on 4 th June.
1.4. Grant Thornton issued an ‘except for’ opinion on the Council’s arrangements to ensure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. They identified that the
council’s level of general fund reserves had been insufficient to manage the financial impact
of an event on the scale of the covid pandemic without taking unplanned short term
measures, and recommended that the council should continue to keep under review the
adequacy of its level of reserves and the potential to reduce expenditure. The Annual Audit
Letter outlines this aspect of the audit and its conclusions.
1.5. Grant Thornton’s audit scale fee for the year was £178.6k, and the Audit Plan presented to
the Committee in January 2020 prior to the impact of the covid pandemic advised the
Council that Grant Thornton intended to propose an additional fee of £20.3k for their work.
The Annual Audit Letter confirms that additional audit fees of £59.8k have been proposed.
This is subject to approval by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA), and at the time
of issuing of this report £27.3k has been approved by PSAA and the remainder is under
consideration.
2. Housing Benefit Subsidy grant claim audit
2.1. The audit of councils’ Housing Benefit subsidy claims is subject to a separate appointment
process rather than being part of the role of the appointed auditor. The council has
appointed Mazars to audit its Housing Benefit subsidy claim.
2.2. The audit of the 2019/20 claim form concluded in March 2021. The audit identified a small
number of errors, and some additional corrections were proposed by the council and agreed
as part of the audit. The value of the initial grant claim was £205,127k, and the final audited
claim was increased by £4,941 of corrections and £140 in relation to errors.

.

Page 20

The Annual Audit Letter for
Leeds City Council
Page 21

Year ended 31 March 2020
19 April 2021

Contents
Section
1. Executive Summary

3

2. Audit of the Financial Statements

5

3. Value for Money conclusion

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Page

11

Appendices
A

Reports issued and fees

17

Gareth Mills

Page 22

Engagement Lead
T: 0113 200 2535
E: gareth.mills@uk.gt.com

Perminder Sethi
Engagement Senior
Manager
T: 0113 2002547
E: perminder.sethi@uk.gt.com

Andrew McNeil
Engagement Assistant
Manager
T: 0161 234 6366
E: andrew.mcneil@uk.gt.com

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | April 2021

2

1. Executive Summary
Purpose
Our Annual Audit Letter (Letter) summarises the key findings arising from the
work that we have carried out at Leeds City Council (the Council) for the
year ended 31 March 2020.
This Letter is intended to provide a commentary on the results of our work to
the Council and external stakeholders, and to highlight issues that we wish to
draw to the attention of the public. In preparing this Letter, we have followed
the National Audit Office (NAO)'s Code of Audit Practice and Auditor
Guidance Note (AGN) 07 – 'Auditor Reporting’.

Page 23

We reported the detailed findings from our audit work to the Council’s
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee as those charged with
governance in our Audit Findings (ISA260) Report on 23 November 2020 and
8 February 2021.

Respective responsibilities
We have carried out our audit in accordance with the NAO's Code of Audit Practice,
which reflects the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the
Act). Our key responsibilities are to:
•

give an opinion on the Council's financial statements (section two)

•

assess the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources (the value for money conclusion) (section
three).

In our audit of the Council’s financial statements, we comply with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs) and other guidance issued by the NAO.

Our work
Materiality

We determined materiality for the audit of the Council's financial statements to be £26,852k which was 1.3% of the Council’s
gross revenue expenditure.

Financial Statements opinion

We issued an unqualified opinion on the Council’s financial statements on 16 March 2021.
We included an emphasis of matter paragraph in our report in respect of the uncertainty relating to the valuation of land and
buildings and investment properties, as well as uncertainty in respect of some valuations of private equity and pooled property
funds as a result of the Coronavirus pandemic. This does not affect our opinion that the statements give a true and fair view of
the Council's financial position and its income and expenditure for the year.

Whole of Government Accounts
(WGA)

We are currently completing work on the Council’s consolidation return following guidance issued by the NAO.

Use of statutory powers

We did not identify any matters which required us to exercise our additional statutory powers.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | April 2021

3

Executive Summary
Value for Money arrangements

Our Audit Findings Report last year identified the low level of Council reserves and recommended these be reviewed. Whilst the
Council took action and started to increase its reserves, these had not been sufficiently built up when the Council went into the
Covid-19 pandemic.
The financial impact of Covid-19 has been significant on the Council and highlights the inadequacy of the Council’s General Fund
Reserves and balances to cushion the impact of major events, requiring the Council to take a range of unplanned and short term
measures to manage the additional costs.
This situation indicates weaknesses in the level of General Fund Reserves to deal with significant unforeseen circumstances
resulting from the Council’s arrangements for financial management. We therefore issued a qualified ‘except for’ value for money
conclusion. Except for this matter, the Council had proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources. Further information on our VFM work is detailed from page 11.

Certificate

Page 24

We are currently unable to certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Leeds City Council. This is
because we have yet to complete work on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts consolidation return. Once this is
completed, we will be able to certify that we have completed the audit of the Council’s financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of the Code of Audit Practice.

Working with the Council
The outbreak of the Covid-19 coronavirus pandemic has had a significant
impact on the normal operations of the Council, both operationally and in
preparing the financial statements. Restrictions for non-essential travel has
meant both Council and audit staff have had to work remotely, including
remotely accessing working papers and financial systems. In addition, face
to face meetings have been replaced by telephone and video conferencing
arrangements which has also extended to Council Committee meetings
including the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee.

We would like to record our appreciation for the assistance and co-operation
provided to us during our audit by the Council's staff .
Grant Thornton UK LLP
April 2021

This is our second year of audit at Leeds City Council and we believe we
have continued to develop professional working relationships with your
officers.
We have held regular liaison meetings with the Section 151 Officer and her
senior finance team, particularly since the start of the pandemic, to
understand the financial and operational impact on the Council

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | April 2021

4

2. Audit of the Financial Statements
Our audit approach
Materiality
In our audit of the Council financial statements, we use the concept of
materiality to determine the nature, timing and extent of our work, and in
evaluating the results of our work. We define materiality as the size of the
misstatement in the financial statements that would lead a reasonably
knowledgeable person to change or influence their economic decisions.

Page 25

We determined materiality for the audit of the Council’s financial statements
to be £26,852k, which is 1.3% of the Council’s gross revenue expenditure.
We used this benchmark as, in our view, users of the Council's financial
statements are most interested in where the Council has spent its revenue in
the year.
We also set a lower level of specific materiality for senior officer
remuneration.
We set a lower threshold of £1,074k, above which we reported errors to the
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee in our Audit Findings Report.

The scope of our audit
Our audit involves obtaining sufficient evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements to give reasonable assurance that they are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes assessing whether:
•

the accounting policies are appropriate, have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed;

•

the significant accounting estimates made by management are reasonable; and

•

the overall presentation of the financial statements gives a true and fair view.

We also read the remainder of the Statement of Accounts to check it is consistent with
our understanding of the Council and with the financial statements included in the
Statement of Accounts on which we gave our opinion.
We carry out our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) and the NAO Code of Audit
Practice. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business
and is risk based.
We identified key risks and set out overleaf the work we performed in response to
these risks and the results of this work.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | April 2021

5

Audit of the Financial Statements
Significant Audit Risks
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.
Risks identified in our Audit Plan Addendum

How we responded to the risk

Findings and conclusions

Covid-19
The global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus pandemic has led to
unprecedented uncertainty for all organisations, requiring urgent
business continuity arrangements to be implemented. We expected
current circumstances to have an impact on the production and audit
of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020,
including and not limited to:

As part of our audit work we have:
• worked with management to understand the implications
the response to the Covid-19 pandemic had on the
organisation’s ability to prepare the financial statements
and update financial forecasts and assessed the
implications for our materiality calculations. No changes
were made to materiality levels previously reported. The
draft financial statements were provided on 6 July 2020

On the basis of our work, we concluded that
our anticipated audit report opinion would be
unqualified with an Emphasis of Matter
paragraph, relating to the material uncertainty
around the valuation of land and buildings and
investment properties as a direct impact of
Covid-19 as reported by the Council’s valuers,
and the material uncertainty in respect of
some valuations of level 3 private equity and
pooled property funds identified by the West
Yorkshire Pension Fund auditor as result of
Covid-19. This change to our opinion is a
direct result of the impact of Covid-19 and is
consistent across our local authority audits.

•

Page 26
•

•

•

Remote working arrangements and redeployment of staff to
critical front line duties may impact on the quality and timing of
the production of the financial statements, and the evidence we
can obtain through physical observation
Volatility of financial and property markets will increase the
uncertainty of assumptions applied by management to asset
valuation and receivable recovery estimates, and the reliability of
evidence we can obtain to corroborate management estimates
Financial uncertainty will require management to reconsider
financial forecasts supporting their going concern assessment
and whether material uncertainties for a period of at least 12
months from the anticipated date of approval of the audited
financial statements have arisen

•

liaised with other audit suppliers, regulators and
government departments to co-ordinate practical crosssector responses to issues as and when they arose.
Examples include the material uncertainty disclosed by the
Council’s property valuation expert

•

evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial
statements that arose in light of the Covid-19 pandemic

•

evaluated whether sufficient audit evidence could be
obtained through remote technology

•

evaluated whether sufficient audit evidence could be
obtained to corroborate significant management estimates
such as assets and the pension fund liability valuations

Disclosures within the financial statements will require significant •
revision to reflect the unprecedented situation and its impact on
the preparation of the financial statements as at 31 March 2020 in
accordance with IAS1, particularly in relation to material
•
uncertainties.

We therefore identified the global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus as a
significant risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks
of material misstatement.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | April 2021

evaluated management’s assumptions that underpin the
revised financial forecasts and the impact on
management’s going concern assessment
discussed with management the implications for our audit
report where we have been unable to obtain sufficient audit
evidence.

6

Audit of the Financial Statements
Significant Audit Risks continued
Risks identified in our Audit Plan

How we responded to the risk

Management over-ride of controls

As part of our work we:

Page 27

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the •
risk of management over-ride of controls is present in all entities. The
Authority faces external scrutiny of its spending and this could
•
potentially place management under undue pressure in terms of how
they report performance.
•
We therefore identified management override of control, in particular
journals, management estimates and transactions outside the course
of business as a significant risk, which was one of the most
•
significant assessed risks of material misstatement.

•

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | April 2021

Findings and conclusions

There were no issues arising from our work
evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls which we needed to bring to your attention.
over journals
analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria for
selecting high risk unusual journals
tested unusual journals recorded during the year and after
the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and
corroboration
gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and
critical judgements applied and made by management and
considered their reasonableness with regard to
corroborative evidence
evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting
policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions.

7

Audit of the Financial Statements
Significant Audit Risks continued
How we responded to the risk

Findings and conclusions

Valuation of land and buildings

As part of our audit work, we have:

The Authority re-values its land and buildings on an annual and
rolling five-yearly basis. This valuation represents a significant
estimate by management in the financial statements due to the
size of the numbers involved (some £5.3 billion) and the
sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key assumptions.

•

evaluated management's processes and assumptions for
the calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to
valuation experts and the scope of their work

The Council uses five specialist valuers. Our audit
work did not identify any issues in respect of the
valuation of land and buildings except for the
following matter.

•

evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the valuation experts

Additionally, management will need to ensure the carrying value
in the Authority’s financial statements is not materially different
from the current value or the fair value (for surplus assets) at the
financial statements date, where a rolling programme is used.

•

discussed with the valuers the basis on which the
valuation was carried out

•

carried out completeness and accuracy testing of the
underlying information provided to the valuer used to
determine the estimate including floor areas

•

challenged the information and assumptions used by the
valuers to assess completeness and consistency with our
understanding

•

in a new development for 2019-20, engaged our own
valuer to assess the instructions to the Authority’s valuers,
the Authority’s valuers’ report and the assumptions that
underpin the valuation

•

tested revaluations made during the year to see if they
had been input correctly into the Authority's asset register

•

evaluated the assumptions made by management for
those assets not revalued during the year and how
management had satisfied themselves that these were not
materially different to current value at year end

•

considered, where the valuation date was not 31 March
2020 for assets valued in year, the arrangements
management had used to ensure the valuation remains
materially appropriate at 31 March 2020.

Page 28

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

We therefore identified valuation of land and buildings, particularly
revaluations and impairments, as a significant risk, which was one
of the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement,
and a key audit matter.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | April 2021

Three of the valuation reports included a material
valuation uncertainty paragraph as a result of
Covid-19 as well as being reported in the
Council’s financial statements. We considered it
appropriate to include an emphasis of matter in
our audit opinion relating to this material
uncertainty in respect of Council Housing and
Investment Properties. It is important to note that
this is a national issue, applying to most local
authorities with material land and building asset
bases.

8

Audit of the Financial Statements
Significant Audit Risks continued
Risks identified in our Audit Plan

How we responded to the risk

Findings and conclusions

Valuation of pension fund net liability

As part of our work, we have:

The Authority's pension fund net liability, as reflected in its
balance sheet as the net defined benefit liability, represents
a significant estimate in the financial statements.

•

The following key issues arose from our audit work on
the Council’s pension fund liability:

The pension fund net liability is considered a significant
estimate due to the size of the numbers involved (£1.5
billion in the Authority’s balance sheet at 31 March 2019)
and the sensitivity of the estimate to changes in key
assumptions.

Page 29

We therefore identified valuation of the Authority’s pension
fund net liability as a significant risk, which was one of the
most significant assessed risks of material misstatement.

•
•
•
•
•

•

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | April 2021

updated our understanding of the processes and
controls put in place by management to ensure that the
Authority’s pension fund net liability is not materially
misstated and evaluated the design of the associated
controls
evaluated the instructions issued by management to
their management expert (an actuary) for this estimate
and the scope of the actuary’s work
assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the actuary who carried out the Authority’s pension fund
valuation
assessed the accuracy and completeness of the
information provided by the Authority to the actuary to
estimate the liability
tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and
liability and disclosures in the notes to the core financial
statements with the actuarial report from the actuary
undertook procedures to confirm the reasonableness of
the actuarial assumptions made by reviewing the report
of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and
performing any additional procedures suggested within
the report
commenced work to obtain assurances from the auditor
of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund as to the controls
surrounding the validity and accuracy of membership
data; contributions data and benefits data sent to the
actuary by the pension fund and the fund assets
valuation in the pension fund financial statements.

•

•

•

•

the Council was advised by the West Yorkshire
Pension Fund (WYPF) in early September that AON
Hewitt (the actuary) had identified an error in the
asset return calculations used for the overall WYPF
fund asset figures. The impact for Leeds was is to
increase the value of pension assets by £21.6m.
The Council adjusted the accounts for this issue
we asked the Council to obtain confirmation that the
impact of the McCloud judgement had been included
and the likely impact of the Goodwin judgement on
the pension fund net liability at 31 March 2020. The
Council’s actuary confirmed:
• the impact of the McCloud judgement had
been included in the pension fund net
liability at 31 March 2020
• the impact of the Goodwin judgement
totalled -£9.73m. This issue arose after the
Council had prepared its draft accounts.
The Council adjusted for this amount.
the West Yorkshire Pension Fund auditor identified
that some investments within Level 2 of the Fair
Value hierarchy should have been classified as
Level 3. As a result, they identified a difference for
Level 3 private equity investments of £69.1m. The
Council added a note to its accounts to explain this
difference
the West Yorkshire Pension Fund audit opinion for
2019-20 included a material uncertainty paragraph
relating to Covid-19 in respect of some valuations of
level 3 private equity and pooled property funds.
These were disclosed in the Council’s accounts and
we also included as a material uncertainty in our
audit report.
9

Audit of the Financial Statements
Audit opinion
We issued an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements on 16 March
2021.

Preparation of the financial statements
The outbreak of the Covid-19 coronavirus pandemic had a significant impact on the
accounts preparation and audit process. Restrictions for non-essential travel meant
both Council and audit staff had to work remotely, including remotely accessing
working papers and financial systems. In addition, face to face meetings were
replaced by telephone and video conferencing arrangements.

Page 30

The Council presented us with draft financial statements in accordance with the
agreed deadline. The provision of accounts working papers was initially delayed as a
suitable platform to provide these was not available. There were some undoubted
challenges arising from delivering the year-end audit in a wholly remote fashion, with
both finance colleagues and members of the audit team all working from home. This
remote working on both sides, combined with the increased level of audit testing
performed and audit evidence required resulted in the audit fieldwork taking longer
than planned. We have held discussions with the Chief Finance Officer after issuing
our audit opinion on the 2019/20 financial statements to consider opportunities to
improve the audit process and working papers for 2020/21.

•

Merrion House – an adjustment to recognise the receipt of 50% of the advance rental
prepayment for Merrion House (£27.33m) as a return of capital, rather than as deferred
income (or income) and reducing the fair value of the Council’s holding in the LLP in the
2019-20 accounts (to £8.45m). A Prior Period Adjustment (PPA) was also required to
correctly account for the advance rental prepayment received in 2018-19. This adjustment
recognises the receipt of the advance rental prepayment as a return of capital to the
Council.

The Council processed all the adjustments identified. Except for Merrion House, none of the
adjustments impacted on the Council’s Useable Reserves position. The key impact of the
Merrion House adjustment was to reduce deferred income by £27.33m and increase the
Council’s Useable Capital Receipts by the same amount in 2018-19.

Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report
We are also required to review the Council’s Annual Governance Statement and Narrative
Report. It published them on its website alongside the draft Statement of Accounts.
Both documents were prepared in line with the CIPFA Code and relevant supporting guidance.
We confirmed that both documents were consistent with the financial statements prepared by
the Council and with our knowledge of the Council.

All information and explanations requested from management was provided. We
would like to record our thanks to the finance team in providing the information
requested remotely despite the challenges of remote working resulting from Covid19.

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA)

Issues arising from the audit of the financial statements

Certificate of closure of the audit

We reported the key issues from our audit to the Council's Corporate Governance
and Audit Committee on 23 November 2020 and 8 February 2021.
In addition to the key audit risks reported previously, we identified the following
adjustments to the financial statements:
•
•
•

We are currently undertaking work in line with instructions provided by the NAO. Once this
work is complete, we expect to issue an assurance statement for the group auditor.

We are unable to certify at this time that we have completed the audit of the financial
statements of Leeds City Council. This is because we have yet to complete work on the
Council’s Whole of Government Accounts consolidation return. Once completed, we will be
able to certify that we have completed the audit of the Council’s financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice.

Pension Fund Liability - an increase in the Council’s pension fund liabilities of
£9.73m resulting from the impact of the Goodwin judgement
Classification - £60m of Short Term Investments should correctly be classified as
Cash Equivalents
Grants Receipts in Advance – initially included in Creditors but should properly be
disclosed separately as Grant Receipts in Advance (£25.4m)

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | April 2021

10

3. Value for Money conclusion
Background
We carried out our review in accordance with the NAO Code of Audit
Practice, following the guidance issued by the NAO in April 2020 which
specified the criterion for auditors to evaluate:
In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions
and deploys resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for
taxpayers and local people.

Overall Value for Money conclusion
We issued a qualified ‘except for’ value for money conclusion because our work
identified weaknesses in the level of General Fund Reserves to deal with significant
unforeseen circumstances resulting from the Council’s arrangements for financial
management. Except for this matter, the Council had proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Page 31

Key findings
Our first step in carrying out our work was to perform a risk assessment and
identify the risks where we concentrated our work.
The risks we identified and the work we performed are set out overleaf.
As part of our Audit Findings report agreed with the Council in November
2020 and February 2021, we agreed three recommendation to address our
findings.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | April 2021

11

Value for Money conclusion
Value for Money Risks
Risks identified in our Audit Plan

How we responded to the risk

Findings and conclusions
(as reported in our Audit Findings Report (ISA 260) – February 2021)

Financial Standing

As part of our work we:

Leeds City Council, in common with other
authorities, continues to operate under
significant financial pressures.

•

reviewed key financial and
operational documents

•

continued to monitor the
Authority’s financial position
through regular meetings with
senior management

In our Audit Findings Report last year, we reported that the Council had continued to
maintain its reserves at around 5% of net revenue expenditure. Discussions with
management indicated this was due to the Council making informed decisions regarding the
level of balances and reserves as part of a strategy to protect the provision of front line
services.

•

Page 32

For 2019-20, the Council was planning to
deliver a balanced outturn position but to
achieve this, needed to deliver savings of
some £24.4m whilst continuing to manage
cost pressures within Children’s Services.
The Financial Monitoring Report presented to
Executive Board on 7 January 2020 to Month
7 (October 2019), indicated the majority of
savings plans were on track to be delivered
although highlighted some risks that needed
to be managed, including the impact of
delayed capital receipts.

•

considered how the Authority
manages overspends within
Children’s Services and the
impact of delayed capital
receipts
continued to assess progress in
the identification and delivery of
the £24.4m savings required
and plans in place to identify
cost improvements into 2020-21
and beyond.

We recommended in our Audit Findings Report last year that in the context of historic
projected spending trends and the potential impact this could have on the level of useable
reserves, the Council should consider the adequacy of its reserves going forward and the
appropriate level of balances which should be linked to the approved MTFS and which
should also be reviewed each year.
The Council agreed to annually review its strategy to ensure that it retains an appropriate
level of balances within its general reserves.
Covid-19 has significantly impacted on the Council from March 2020. The impact was most
significant in the current year, 2020-21 with additional costs of £30.5m and next year, 202122 where the budget shortfall was estimated at £118.7m.
Prior to Covid-19, the Council continued to operate under significant financial pressures,
however, it had effective arrangements in place to routinely monitor its budget and take
appropriate action to mitigate against any variances or additional calls on resources. This
helped deliver the small overspend of £0.3m for 2019-20.
However, the impact of Covid-19 has had a significant impact on the Council from mid March
2020, with additional costs to support operational services, lost income, reduced council tax
and business rates payments all impacting on the Council’s financial standing.
The level of the Council’s general fund reserves which amounted to £31.5m at 31 March
2020, were initially considered insufficient to absorb the additional costs associated with
Covid-19. The Council also has an additional £77.5m of earmarked reserves.
Whilst the Council believed it had sufficient time to manage its position for 2021-22 through a
range of actions to reduce overall expenditure, it believed it was at that time unable to absorb
the additional costs for 2020-21 without significantly impacting on services. As a result, the
Council requested support from MHCLG in May 2020 through a capitalisation order to allow
the Council to better manage the situation over a longer period, rather than having to make
short term decisions.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | April 2021

12

Value for Money conclusion
Value for Money Risks continued
Risks identified in our audit plan

Financial Standing continued

How we responded to the risk

Findings and conclusions
(as reported in our Audit Findings Report (ISA 260) – February 2021)
We understand from the November 2020 Executive Board Report, that if support was not
agreed with MHCLG by the end of November, the Council would bring forward budget
proposals to balance the budget for 2020-21 in December 2020. We understand the Chief
Finance Officer did not consider a S114 Notice under the Local Government Finance Act
1988 (where expenditure of the authority is likely to exceed the resources available) would be
likely, although this has not been ruled out.

Page 33

When Covid-19 took hold in late March and early April, the Council took a range of actions to
mitigate the financial impact of Covid-19, and believed it had sufficient time to manage the
additional financial pressures resulting from Covid-19 in 2021-22, however, it considered it
may not be able to absorb the additional costs relating to 2020-21, and in May 2020,
requested additional support from the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local
Government (MHCLG) and Treasury. We understand from management that the request for
a capitalisation order was an informed decision taken by the Council to allow it to manage
the situation over a longer period, rather than having to make short term decisions.
Since this time, the Council has been taking steps to reduce the budget gap resulting from
Covid-19 through a range of measures, and by November 2020, had reduced the gap to
£30.5m (from some £95.1m). At this point, the Council felt it was able to manage the
remaining additional costs for 2020-21 and withdrew its application for a capitalisation order
on 12 November 2020.
Conclusion
Overall, if Covid-19 had not taken place, the Council’s financial position would have
continued to be sufficiently stable to manage the financial impact of small unforeseen events
as in previous years, however, the financial impact of Covid-19 has been significant and
highlights the inadequacy of the Council’s General Fund Reserves and balances to cushion
the impact of major events, requiring the Council to take a range of unplanned and short term
measures to manage the additional costs.
This situation indicates weaknesses in the level of General Fund Reserves to deal with
significant unforeseen circumstances resulting from the Council’s arrangements for financial
management. Except for this matter, the Council had proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We therefore issued a qualified
‘except for’ value for money conclusion.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | April 2021

13

Value for Money conclusion
Value for Money Risks continued
Risks identified in our audit plan

How we responded to the risk

Findings and conclusions
(as reported in our Audit Findings Report (ISA 260) – February 2021)

Financial Standing continued

We have repeated our recommendation from last year, that the Council should consider the
adequacy of its reserves going forward and the appropriate level of balances which should
be linked to the approved MTFS and which should be reviewed each year. Additionally, the
Council should consider whether it has explored all possible options to further reduce
expenditure in all service areas, including discretionary spending.

Page 34

In addition, we agreed a number of recommendations with management relating to the
delivery of a balanced outturn position for 2020/21, and an achievable and realistic budget for
2021/22 which can be delivered. As part of considering the 2021/22 budget, we will also
consider the Chief Finance Officer’s Section 25 Report under the Local Government Act
2003 relating to the robustness of estimates and the adequacy of financial reserves. We also
agreed to continue to meet on a monthly basis with the Council’s Chief Finance Officer to
consider the actions being planned, taken and delivered to achieve savings in both 2020/21
and 2021/22 and to monitor the Council’s financial position for both years.
We reported that any deterioration in the Council’s financial position for 2020/21 or planned
position for 2021/22, could lead us to consider exercising our additional statutory powers
under Part 5, Section 24, Schedule 7 (Paragraph 2) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 in respect of written recommendations.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | April 2021

14

Value for Money conclusion
Value for Money Risks continued
Risks identified in our audit plan

How we responded to the risk

Findings and conclusions
(as reported in our Audit Findings Report (ISA 260) – February 2021)

Brexit

As part of our work we:

The UK left the European Union on 31
January 2020 with a transition period until 31
December 2020. There will be national and
local implications resulting from Brexit that will
impact on the Authority, which the Authority
will need to plan for.

•

reviewed key financial and
operational documents

•

discussed key relevant matters
with senior management.

Page 35

We are aware of the Authority’s planning for
Brexit from our consideration of the
Authority’s arrangements as part of our prior
year VFM related work. For the current year,
we considered the Authority’s on-going
arrangements and plans to mitigate any risks
on Brexit.

On 23rd June 2016, the UK voted to leave the European Union. Article 50 was triggered on
29th March 2017 and the UK formally left the EU on 31 January 2020. While the UK has
agreed the terms of its EU departure, both sides were agreeing their future relationship
during the transition period, which began immediately after the UK left the EU and ended
on 31 December 2020. During this 11-month period, the UK continued to follow all of the
EU's rules and its trading relationship remained the same.
Following the result of the June 2016 referendum, Leeds City Council's Executive Board
considered a report in July 2016 and approved the report outlining five main areas that the
council and its partners would focus on in the run-up to Brexit: 1. Maintaining momentum
on major development and infrastructure schemes, and economic growth projects; 2.
Supporting business and key institutions; 3. Creating a more tolerant and united city; 4.
Securing devolution; and 5. Providing confident, outward-looking leadership and image of
Leeds as an international city.
The majority of the council’s work to prepare for Brexit has been undertaken as part of
normal business arrangements at the Council. However, co-ordination of activity has been
undertaken by the existing team based within the Chief Executive’s Office and through the
Brexit officer working group. Regular reports have also been presented to the Executive
Board. There is also recognition that should an emergency situation arise, council officers
may need to be temporarily redeployed as part of response and recovery arrangements.
The Council has developed a strategic response plan to provide a framework to deal with
the uncertainty in the build up to and the response phase after the UK’s exit. The plan is
structured around five key themes: 1. Infrastructure and supplies; 2. Business and
economic impact; 3. Community; 4. Media and communications and; 5. Organisational
impact. The response plan is able to be scaled up or down depending on the nature of the
UK’s final exit from the EU. The response plan is consistent with planning at a West
Yorkshire level through the Local Resilience Forum (LRF) and national plans led by
government.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | April 2021

15

Value for Money conclusion
Value for Money Risks continued
Risks identified in our audit plan

How we responded to the risk

Findings and conclusions
(as reported in our Audit Findings Report (ISA 260) – February 2021)

Brexit continued

Conclusion
The Council has continued to monitor Brexit developments following the referendum in
June 2016 and has continued to liaise with neighbouring authorities and other agencies to
ensure a co-ordinated approach to an EU exit through the West Yorkshire Local Resilience
Forum. The Council has developed a strategic response plan to provide a framework to
deal with the uncertainty in the build up to and the response phase after the UK’s exit.

Page 36

The Council recognises Brexit may impact on local businesses and set up a dedicated
page on Brexit on its website to support both individuals, businesses and people wanting to
apply to remain under the EU Settlement Scheme.
The Council continued to monitor developments and liaise with its partners to ensure it
remained prepared for Brexit on 31 December 2020.
The Council has appropriate arrangements in place for managing both the local and national
implications resulting from Brexit as well as regular reporting to members.
We will continue to monitor the Council's plans to manage Brexit as part of our 2020-21 audit.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | April 2021

16

A. Reports issued and fees
Area

We confirm below our final reports issued and fees charged for the audit and the
provision of non-audit services.
Reports issued
Report

Date issued

Audit Plan

January 2020

Audit Plan Addendum

April 2020

Audit Findings (ISA260) Report

November 2020 and
updated January 2021

Annual Audit Letter

April 2021

Pensions – IAS 19 The Financial Reporting Council has highlighted that the depth of
work by audit firms in respect of IAS 19 needs to be enhanced
across local government audits. Accordingly, we have increased
the level of scope and coverage in respect of IAS 19 this year to
reflect this.
PPE Valuation – As above, the Financial Reporting Council has highlighted that
auditors need to improve the depth of work on PPE valuations
work of experts
across the sector. We have increased the volume and scope of
our audit work to reflect this including the use of a valuation
expert.

Page 37

2019-20
2019-20
2018-19
Planned fee Actual fees Actual fees
£
£
£

PSAA scale fee

178,604

178,604

178,604

231,953

Audit fee variations

*20,350

**59,750

9,000

-

Total proposed fees

198,954

238,354

187,604

231,953

Audit fee variation
As outlined in our Audit Plan, the 2019-20 scale fee published by PSAA of £178,604
assumes that the scope of the audit does not significantly change. There are a
number of areas where the scope of the audit has changed, which has led to
additional work. This was reported in our Audit Plan dated 9 January 2020. We also
highlighted in the ISA260 Report in November and January that we anticipated a
further fee variation of c20% upon completion of our audit. We have now updated
our fee variation to reflect the actual outturn as summarised in the following table.
Fee variations are subject to PSAA approval.
© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | April 2021

Actual
variation
£

3,500

10,000

9,350

15,000

Increased
challenge and
depth of work

To meet the higher threshold set by the FRC, we have
undertaken additional work and challenge in the following areas,
including:
• information provided by the entity (IPE)
• journals
• management review of controls
• accounting estimates
• going concern
• related parties and similar areas.

5,000

7,500

New standards
and
developments

This includes preparations for IFRS16, new lease arrangements
and other developments. The additional work undertaken was
less than expected given IFRS16 was deferred.

2,500

1,500

Covid-19

Additional staffing costs associated with the impact of Covid-19
amounted to some £10,000 but we have absorbed 80% of this
and propose an additional £2,000.

-

2,000

Additional
accounts audit
inputs

Additional work required in a number of areas including
agreeing the draft accounts to the Council’s ageing FMS
system; resolving queries relating to the Council’s PFI schemes;
resolving accounting queries relating to Merrion House
(including a prior period adjustment); resolving issues relating to
the Headingley lease in respect of the cricket and rugby clubs.

-

10,000

Additional VFM
inputs

Increased VFM work reviewing the Council’s financial standing
given the significant impact of Covid-19 and the pressures to
balance the budget for 2020-21 and 2021-22. This includes
senior input from the engagement lead, senior manager and
review partner as well as review by the Firm’s VFM National
Consistency Panel. This work remains on-going and will
continue into the 2020-21 audit.

-

13,750

*20,350

**59,750

Fees 2019-20
2017-18
Actual fees
(KPMG)
£

Reason

Planned
variation
£

Overall fee
variation

17

A. Reports issued and fees continued
*Audit fee variation
Our Audit Plan included a fee variation for £20,350 to take into account the additional audit work to be performed in relation to PPE, pensions and key areas of estimate and judgement.
Over the past year the current Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on all of our lives, both at work and at home. The impact of Covid-19 on the audit of the financial
statements for 2019-20 has been multifaceted. This includes:
• Revisiting planning - we have needed to revisit our planning and refresh risk assessments, materiality and testing levels. This has resulted in the identification of a significant risk at
the financial statements level in respect of Covid-19 necessitating the issuing of an addendum to our original Audit Plan as well as additional work on areas such as going concern
and disclosures in accordance with IAS1 particularly in respect to material uncertainties.
•

Management’s assumptions and estimates - there is increased uncertainty over many estimates including property, pension and other investment valuations. Many of these
valuations are impacted by the reduction in economic activity and we are required to understand and challenge the assumptions applied by management. We included an Emphasis
of Matter in the Audit Report in respect of the material uncertainty around the valuation of land and buildings and investment properties as a direct impact of Covid-19 as reported by
the Council’s valuers, and the material uncertainty in respect of some valuations of level 3 private equity and pooled property funds identified by the West Yorkshire Pension Fund
auditor as result of Covid-19.

•

Financial resilience assessment – we have been required to consider the financial resilience of audited bodies. This has increased the amount of work that we need to undertake on
the sustainable resource deployment element of the VFM criteria necessitating enhanced and more detailed reporting in our ISA260. This has been particularly more so at Leeds City
Council given the significant impact of Covid-19 and the pressures to balance the budget for 2020-21 and 2021-22.

Page 38

We have been discussing this issue with PSAA over recent months and note these issues are similar to those experienced in the commercial sector and NHS. In both sectors there has
been a recognition that audits will take longer with commercial audit deadlines also being extended by 4 months and NHS deadlines by a month. The FRC has also issued guidance to
companies and auditors setting out its expectation that audit standards remain high and of additional work needed across all audits. The link attached https://www.frc.org.uk/covid-19guidance-and-advice (see guidance for auditors) sets out the expectations of the FRC.
As a result of the above, increased costs have been incurred due to the additional time taken to deliver the audit this year. We have discussed and agreed the additional fee variation
with the Chief Finance Officer, noting the expected variation of 20% of the above planned fee, taking the proposed fee to £238,354. Please note that all proposed additional fee
variations are subject to approval by PSAA in line with the Terms of Appointment.
Fees for non-audit services
Service

Fees £

Audit related services:
-

None

-

Non-Audit related services:
- CFO Insights

17,500

Non- audit services
• For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP
teams providing services to the Council. The table alongside summarises all non-audit
services which were identified.
•

We have considered whether non-audit services might be perceived as a threat to our
independence as the Council’s auditor and have ensured that appropriate safeguards
are put in place.

The above non-audit services are consistent with the Council’s policy on the allotment of
non-audit work to your auditor.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | April 2021

18

Page 39
© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member
firms, as the context requires.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

©
2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | April 2021
grantthornton.co.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Report author:

Mary Hasnip

Tel:

3789384

Grant Thornton Audit Progress Report
Date:

25th June 2021

Report of: the Chief Finance Officer
Report to: Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐Yes ☒No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐Yes ☒No

What is this report about?






Grant Thornton have provided an Audit Progress Report on their 2020/21 audit, which is
attached as Appendix 2.The Audit Progress Report outlines their proposed timetable for the
2020/21 audit and their proposed audit fee.
The report notes that the requirements for the audit of Value for Money arrangements of
local authorities have changed significantly this year. This will result in a lengthier audit
process which will be reported separately from the audit of the financial statements.
Grant Thornton’s report also highlights some current issues for Members’ information.

Recommendations
a) Members are asked to receive the Audit Progress Report and to note the proposed
timetable for delivery of the 2020/21 audit and the proposed audit fees.

Page 41

Why is the proposal being put forward?
1

Under the Committee’s terms of reference members are required to consider the Council’s
arrangements relating to external audit, including the receipt of external audit reports.

What impact will this proposal have?
Wards Affected:
Have ward members been consulted?

2

☐Yes

☒No

The report outlines Grant Thornton’s proposed timetable for their 2020/21 audit and their
proposed audit fees.

What consultation and engagement has taken place?
3

The Audit Progress Report does not raise any issues requiring consultation or engagement
with the public, ward members or Councillors.

What are the resource implications?
4

Grant Thornton’s report outlines changes to the required audit process to assess whether
the Council has in place proper arrangements for securing value for money.

What are the legal implications?
5

The Audit Progress Report outlines how Grant Thornton propose to discharge their
responsibilities as defined by in the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the
National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice.

What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
6

Grant Thornton’s audit planning process will identify key risks to the preparation of the
financial statements and to the council’s financial standing, which will be reported within
their Audit Plan to the July meeting of the Committee.

Does this proposal support the council’s 3 Key Pillars?
☐Inclusive Growth
7

☐Health and Wellbeing

☐Climate Emergency

The report relates to the council’s underlying financial governance arrangements rather
than to any specific aspect of service delivery.

Options, timescales and measuring success
a) What other options were considered?
8

The report summarises the proposed arrangements for Grant Thornton’s 2020/21 audit and
outlines the reasons for the proposed timetable and audit fees.

b) How will success be measured?
9

The report outlines the progress updates which Grant Thornton intend to provide to the
Committee during their audit.
Page 42

c) What is the timetable for implementation?
10 Grant Thornton intend to present their audit plan to the July meeting of the Committee and
aim to present an ISA 260 report on the financial statements in November and an Annual
Report on value for money arrangements to the February 2022 meeting of the Committee.

Appendices
11 Appendix 1 outlines the main issues arising.
12 Appendix 2 is Grant Thornton’s Audit Progress Report.

Background papers
13 None.

Page 43

Appendix 1 – Main Issues – the 2020/21 audit process
1. Background
1.1. The requirements for producing a Council’s annual statement of accounts are set out in the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. In response to both the ongoing impact of the covid
pandemic and the findings of the Redmond Review into local audit, the government has
issued regulations to amend the required dates for the production of draft and final accounts
for the 2020/21 and 2021/22 financial years.
1.2. For these two years, councils are required to produce their draft accounts by 31st July and
final audited accounts by 30th September. Both of these dates are earlier than the revised
dates for 2019/20, when councils were required to produce draft accounts by 31 st August
and final audited accounts by 30th November. However around 55% of 2019/20 council
audits, including Leeds, were not completed by 30th November 2020.
1.3. For 2020/21, the public inspection period for the draft accounts is required to start on or
before the first working day of August.

2. Proposed audit timetable for 2020/21
2.1. Grant Thornton’s report sets out that they will be aiming to start their audit of the financial
statements in late July or early August, and to complete this part of the audit by 30th
November.
2.2. As this date would be later than the statutory date of 30th September, the council would be
required to publish a notice on its website by 30th September explaining the reasons why
the final audited accounts were not yet available for publication.
2.3. The report also provides an overview of the increased audit requirements for the value for
money element of the annual audit. A separate and more detailed audit report known as
the Annual Report will be required in relation to this element of the audit, and National Audit
Office guidance is that this should be produced within 3 months of the conclusion of the
financial statement element of the audit. Grant Thornton’s report advises that they will be
aiming to produce this Annual Report in January, to be presented at the scheduled February
meeting of the Committee.

3. Proposed audit fees for 2020/21
3.1. The audit scale fee for 2020/21 is £178.6k and Grant Thornton’s report sets out a proposed
fee of £275.6k.
3.2. Members may be aware that following the Redmond Review, the government have set
aside an additional £15m to be provided to local authorities as a specific grant to fund the
cost of increased audit fees. The government recently conducted a consultation on how
this should be allocated across local authorities. This proposed an approach of allocation
in proportion to scale fees, but asked for views on a number of other approaches. Until the
outcome of this consultation is published, it will not be known to what extent the council’s
allocation from the overall £15m will cover Grant Thornton’s proposed fee variations.
However it is possible that the proposed fee increase would be largely covered by the grant.

Page 44

Leeds City Council

Page 45

Page 46

•

Page 47

•

•

•

•

•

Page 48

•

Page 49

Page 50

•

•

•
Page 51

•

•

•
.

•

Page 52

•
•

•
•
•
•

•

•
•
•

More
meaningful
and timely
reporting

Maximising
the value
from
auditor’s
work

Page 53

•

More
freedom to
reflect local
context

VFM arrangements commentary and recommendations

Page 54

•
•

•

Page 55

•
•

•
•

•
•
•
•

•
•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•

•

Page 56

•

•

Page 57

•

•

•

Page 58

•

•

•

•

Page 59

•

•

Page 60

Page 61

Page 62

Agenda Item 10
Report author: Louise Booth
Tel: 0113 3780503

Internal Audit Update Report February to April 2021
Date: 25 June 2021
Report of: Chief Officer (Financial Services)
Report to: Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐ Yes ☒ No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐ Yes ☒ No

What is this report about?
Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions


This report provides a source of assurance that the internal control environment is operating
as intended through a summary of the Internal Audit activity for the period from February to
April 2021. The report highlights the incidence of any significant control failings or
weaknesses.



The work of Internal Audit contributes to Leeds City Council achieving its key priorities by
helping to promote a secure and robust internal control environment, which enables a focus
on accomplishing Best Council Plan objectives.

Recommendations
The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to
a) receive the Internal Audit Update Report covering the period from February to April 2021
and note the work undertaken by Internal Audit during the period covered by the report;
b) note that there have been no limitations in scope and nothing has arisen to compromise the
independence of Internal Audit during the reporting period.

Why is the proposal being put forward?
1 This report provides the Committee with a summary of the Internal Audit activity for the period
February to April 2021.
What impact will this proposal have?
Wards affected:
Have ward members been consulted?

☐ Yes

Page 63

☒ No

2 This report provides a source of assurance that the internal control environment is operating as
intended. The report highlights the incidence of any significant control failings or weaknesses
that would require the intervention of the Committee.
3 The work of Internal Audit contributes towards Leeds City Council achieving its key priorities
and Best Council Plan objectives.
What consultation and engagement has taken place?
4 The Internal Audit Plan is developed in consultation with Members and senior management
across the authority. Consultation around key risks and priorities continues throughout the year.
What are the resource implications?
5 The Internal Audit Plan includes a number of reviews that evaluate the effective use of
resources and provide assurance on the corresponding financial governance, risk management
and internal control arrangements.
What are the legal implications?
6 The Internal Audit Plan includes a number of reviews that provide assurances around the
application of the statutory and constitutional framework.
What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
7 The Internal Audit Plan is subject to review throughout the financial year to ensure that audit
resources are prioritised and directed towards the areas of highest risk. This process involves
the review of information from a number of sources including the corporate and directorate risk
registers.
8 The risks relating to the achievement of the Internal Audit Plan are managed through ongoing
monitoring of performance and resource levels. This information is reported to the Committee.
Does this proposal support the council’s three Key Pillars?
☒ Inclusive Growth

☒ Health and Wellbeing

☒ Climate Emergency

9 The Internal Audit Plan provides assurances that span a range of themes including coverage
across the council’s three Key Pillars.

Options, timescales and measuring success
What other options were considered?
10 The work of Internal Audit provides a key source of assurance to the Committee. Additional
assurances are obtained through a range of further reports presented to the Committee
throughout the year.
How will success be measured?
11 Performance measures are under continual review to ensure that relevant performance
information is reported to the Committee throughout the year.
What is the timetable for implementation?
12 The Internal Audit Plan is in place and is approved annually by the Committee.
Page 64

Appendices
13 A – Internal Audit Update Report February – April 2021
Background papers
14 None.

Page 65

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A - Internal Audit Quarterly Update – February to April 2021
1.

Introduction

1.1

The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee has responsibility for reviewing
the adequacy of the Council’s corporate governance arrangements, including
matters such as internal control and risk management. The Committee also
considers the Council’s arrangements relating to internal audit requirements,
including monitoring the performance of Internal Audit.

1.2

The reports issued by Internal Audit are a key source of assurance providing the
Committee with some evidence that the internal control environment is operating
as intended.

1.3

The reports issued by Internal Audit are directed by the Internal Audit Annual Plan.
This has been developed in line with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
(PSIAS) and has been reviewed and approved by the Committee.

1.4

Depending on the type of audit review undertaken, an assurance opinion may be
assigned for the control environment, compliance and organisational impact. The
control environment opinion is the result of an assessment of the controls in place
to mitigate the risk of the objectives of the system under review not being achieved.
A compliance opinion provides assurance on the extent to which the controls are
being complied with. Assurance opinion levels for the control environment and
compliance are categorised as follows: substantial (highest level); good;
acceptable; limited and no assurance.

1.5

Organisational impact is reported as either: major, moderate or minor depending
on the severity of the issues identified within the audit. Any reports issued with a
major organisational impact will be reported to the Corporate Leadership Team
along with the relevant directorate’s agreed action plan.

1.6

Our protocols specify that we undertake a follow up review where we have
previously reported ‘limited’ or ‘no’ assurance for the audited area. Our audit
reports include an assurance opinion for each objective reviewed within the
audited area. Follow up audits are undertaken for those areas where a specific
objective within the review resulted in limited or no assurance in addition to those
where the limited or no assurance opinion was provided for the review overall.

2.

Audit Reports Issued

2.1

Table 1 below includes the title of the audit reports issued between February and
April 2021, including the level of assurance provided. This relates to reviews
carried out under the reprioritised 2020/21 Internal Audit Annual Plan.
Table 1: Summary of Reports Issued February to April 2021

Page 67

Audit Opinion
Report Title

Control
Environment
Assurance

Compliance
Assurance

Organisational
Impact

Substantial

N/A

Minor

Key Financial Systems
Housing Rents
Resources
Application of HR Policies (Impact of
COVID-19)

Substantial

N/A

Minor

Good

N/A

Minor

Primary School Audit 1

Good

Acceptable

N/A

Primary School Audit 2

Substantial

Good

N/A

Primary School Follow Up 1

Substantial

Good

N/A

Primary School Follow Up 2

Acceptable

Acceptable

N/A

Anti-Money Laundering arrangements for
the Revolving Investment Fund
Schools

School Voluntary Fund audits x 3

N/A certification of account balances

2.2

In addition to the reports detailed in table 1 above, we completed a certification of
the Emergency Active Travel Fund Capital Grant (Tranche 1) during the period.
Our work confims we are satisfied that the expenditure incurred is in line with the
specific funding requirements, provides evidence that the grant terms are met
and reduces the risk of clawback.

2.3

The audit work undertaken in all grant claim reviews includes verification of the
figures being declared to the relevant funding bodies to the financial accounting
system, sample testing of expenditure to ensure that this is in accordance with
the grant determination letter, and on a sample basis that the relevant internal
approvals have been sought and decisions taken.
2020/21 Internal Audit Plan

2.4

During the reporting period, there have been no limitations in scope and nothing
has arisen to compromise our independence. We have finalised 10 audit reviews
(excluding data analytics, work for external clients and fraud and irregularity work)
and we have not identified any issues that would necessitate direct intervention by
the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee.

2.5

The Housing Rents audit received a substantial assurance opinion for the control
environment. This provides the Committee with assurance that this key financial
system is well established and operating as intended.

Page 68

2.6

Of the audit reviews finalised during the period, no weaknesses have been
identified that would result in a ‘major’ organisational impact and, with the
exception of the audit detailed at 2.8 below, no audits have resulted in a limited or
no assurance opinion for any of the objectives assessed.
Follow Up Audits

2.7

During the period we completed two primary school follow up audits. The first of
these was carried out after previous reviews had identified weaknesses relating to
the management of the school voluntary fund. Upon revisiting the area, we are
satisfied that significant progress has been made in implementing our
recommendations and as such we have been able to raise our opinion to provide
substantial assurance for the control environment, and good assurance for
compliance with the controls in place.

2.8

The second of our primary school follow up audits was undertaken after a 2019/20
review identified several issues with the financial controls. Generally satisfactory
progress has been made against the recommendations relating to payroll, creditor
purchases and payments and the management of the school voluntary fund. This
has enabled us to provide an overall opinion of acceptable assurance. However,
changes in personnel at the school have meant we were unable to gather all of the
required evidence to support the collection and accounting of income. As such, we
were unable to fully audit this area, and the opinion remained as limited assurance
for this specific objective. The fieldwork for the audit was completed during the
outbreak of COVID-19 which we appreciate has had a far reaching impact on the
school, and it is anticipated that we will follow up on the collection and accounting
of income through the 2021/22 audit plan.
Other Internal Audit Work

2.9

We continue to support the council’s Core Business Transformation Programme
by providing advice, input and oversight across a number of important work
streams. A significant portion of our data analytics portfolio has also been directed
towards aiding the development of financial dashboards. The dashboards are now
being rolled out across the authority and are key to the transformation of the
financial service, providing dynamic and interactive analysis to budget holders and
decision makers. Our work in this area demonstrates the adaptability of the team
in supporting the ongoing achievement of the council’s ambitions alongside our
programme of assurance work. We will continue to support the Core Business
Transformation Programme over the coming year.
Internal Audit Performance
Feedback

2.10

We actively monitor our performance in a number of areas and encourage
feedback. A customer satisfaction questionnaire (CSQ) is issued with every audit
report. The questionnaires ask for the auditee’s opinion on a range of issues and
asks for an assessment ranging from 5 (for excellent) to 1 (for poor). The results
are presented as an average of the scores received for each question.

2.11

The results of the questionnaires are reported to the Audit Leadership Team and
used to determine areas for improvement and inform the continuing personal
development training programme for Internal Audit staff.
Page 69

2.12

For the period from 1 February to 30 April 2021 we have issued a total of 9
Customer Satisfaction Questionnaires and received 7 completed returns at a
response rate of 78% in the period. A summary of the scores is presented in table
2.
Table 2: Results from Customer Satisfaction Questionnaires for the period 1
February to 30 April 2021.
Average
Score (out
of 5)

Max Value

Min Value

Sufficient notice was given

5.00

5.00

5.00

Level of consultation on scope

5.00

5.00

5.00

Auditor’s understanding of systems

4.43

5.00

3.00

Audit was undertaken efficiently

4.57

5.00

3.00

Level of consultation during the audit

4.86

5.00

4.00

Audit carried out professionally and objectively

5.00

5.00

5.00

Accuracy of draft report

4.86

5.00

4.00

Opportunity to comment on audit findings

4.86

5.00

4.00

Clarity and conciseness of final report

4.86

5.00

4.00

Prompt issue of final report

4.86

5.00

4.00

Audit recommendations will improve control

4.71

5.00

4.00

The audit was constructive and added value

4.71

5.00

4.00

Overall Average Score

4.81

Question

Output
2.13

A summarised version of the reprioritised 2020/21 Audit Plan is included at Table
3 at the foot of this report to provide members with an overview of the objective of
each review, along with the current status. This also includes audits that have been
carried forward into the current year from the 2019/20 Audit Plan. Planned audits
are those that are anticipated to be completed for inclusion within the Head of
Internal Audit Report and Opinion.

2.14

We continue to manage our available resources to direct these towards the highest
areas of risk to ensure that an evidence based Head of Internal Audit opinion can
be provided on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s
framework of governance, risk management and control in accordance with the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).

3.

Conclusions

3.1

There are no issues identified by Internal Audit in the February to April 2021
Internal Audit Update Report that would necessitate direct intervention by the
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee.
Page 70

Table 3 – Status of Planned Audits from the 2020/21 Audit Plan and Follow Up Reviews
Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Status / CGAC
Meeting

Independent examination of accounts and / or assurance that the grant claim has been spent in
accordance with the grant determination.

Reported September
2020, December 2020,
March 2021 and June
2021

Grants and Head of Audit Assurances
Grants and Head of Audit Assurances
arising during the year

ICT and Information Governance

Page 71

Community Cloud (2019/20)

To provide assurance that the Community Cloud project is being managed to deliver its
intended outcomes.

In progress

Asset Management and Security

To provide assurance that there are appropriate controls in place to ensure assets are securely
and effectively managed.

In progress

Privileged User Access Follow Up

To review the progress made in implementing the recommendations made in the 2019/20 audit.

In progress with further
work planned in
2021/22

Data Protection Impact Assessment

To provide assurance that there are appropriate controls in place to ensure that Data Protection
Impact Assessments are completed where required.

In progress

ICT Projects

To review the arrangements in place for the management of ICT projects.

In progress

Key Financial Systems
Key Financial Systems

To provide assurance that appropriate internal controls are in place and operating

Reported March 2021,
June 2021 and
ongoing

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Status / CGAC
Meeting

Procurement
Contract Specification and Management
Follow Up (2019/20)

To review progress in implementing the recommendations made in the previous audit, as
reported to the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee at the November 2018 meeting.

In progress

Contract Management

Individual reviews of contract management arrangements on a sample of contracts to gain
assurance that they are being managed to deliver their intended outcomes, incorporating a
review of contract extensions and open book review where necessary.

In progress

Social Value

To review the arrangements in place to ensure that social value outcomes are appropriately
considered and delivered through procurement.

In progress

Directorate Risks - Adult Social Care and Health

Page 72

Customer Information System (CIS)
Payments

To provide assurance that payments are only made in relation to people with an assessed need,
have been correctly processed and are net of any client contribution. The review will also
provide assurance on the adequacy of controls for identifying changes in circumstances. The
review will cover all payments made through CIS for Residential and Nursing Care, Direct
Payments and Homecare payments.

In progress

Financial Assessments

To provide assurance that all eligible customers in receipt of reviewable services have been
financially assessed as appropriate, that assessments have been correctly calculated and that
all income due has been collected.

Nursing and Residential Care Home
Payments

To provide assurance that the revised processes for paying residential and nursing care
providers are operating as intended.

In progress

To provide assurance that there are appropriate governance arrangements in place with regard
to decision making for the organisation and that outcomes of the decisions are appropriately
monitored and reported.

In progress

Reported March 2021

Directorate Risks - Children and Families
One Adoption West Yorkshire – Decision
Making

Page 73

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Status / CGAC
Meeting

Children’s Centres – Little Owls Service

To provide assurance that there are arrangements in place to monitor performance against
expected outcomes for the service, including financial outcomes, and that action is taken where
issues are identified.

Adjustment to plan - to
be considered for
future audit coverage
(including
incorporation within
Budget Action Plan
reviews) after
disruption to the
service due to COVID

No Recourse to Public Funds

To provide assurance that the Council is only supporting those Children & Families who are
eligible for support and that the payments being made are in line with legislation and guidance.

In progress

Special Educational Needs Out of Area
Placements

To provide assurance that there are appropriate systems in place for assessing and approving
the need for making out of area placements, ensuring that payments are accurate and that
performance in relation to this is appropriately monitored.

In progress

Schools Audits

Individual audits of LCC maintained schools undertaken on a risk basis and audits of year end
school voluntary fund accounts.

Reported March 2021
and June 2021

School Follow Up Audits

To follow up on limited assurance opinions issued within 2019/20.

Reported September
2020, March 2021 and
June 2021

Lettings Enforcement follow-up and new
system review (2019/20)

The review will follow up on the recommendations which remain outstanding since the
September 2018 follow-up review. Additional work will also be undertaken on the
implementation of the new system and the roll out of the revised lettings policy.

Reported March 2021

Council Housing Growth (2019/20)

To review the procurement strategy and provide assurance over the achievement of intended
outcomes.

Reported March 2021

Schools

Directorate Risks – Housing

Overview of Assurance

Major Adaptations

To review the process in place to ensure major adaptations completed for both council and
private houses are appropriate, completed to the required quality and timescale, and provide
value for money.

Complaints Handling Process

A review of the processes in place for dealing with customer complaints, including ensuring root
causes are identified and action taken on lessons learned.

In progress

Leaseholders

To review the process in place to manage leaseholder arrangements.

In progress

Private Sector Regulation – Selective
Licensing

A review of the processes in place for ensuring that properties subject to selective licensing are
licenced and inspected as appropriate.

Housing Disrepair

To assess the extent to which the Authority manages claims received in line with established
best practice, ensuring that appropriate consideration has been given to the council’s
responsibilities in line with the Fitness for Human Habitation Act.

Disabled Facilities Grant

To complete a review enabling sign off of the annual Disabled Facilities Grant claim

Fire Safety

To provide assurance over the controls in place to mitigate the risk of fire in Council properties.

BITMO Assurances

To provide support to Housing Partnerships in the management of the BITMO Assurance
Framework.

In progress

Leeds Building Services Assurances

Time set aside to provide assurance that key risks relating to Leeds Building Services are
appropriately managed. Outline of specific assurance to be confirmed.

In progress

Housing Leeds In-Year Follow Up Work and
Contingency

To undertake follow up work as required during the year and respond to emerging risks within
Housing Leeds.

In progress

Page 74

Audit Area

Other Directorate Risks

Status / CGAC
Meeting
Reported March 2021

Adjustment to plan –
Disabled Facilities
Grant being brought
forward and these
reviews included in
2021/22 audit plan
having been
postponed due to
COVID and resourcing
issues
In progress
Reported March 2021

Page 75

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Status / CGAC
Meeting

Application of HR Policies

To gain assurance that a sample of HR policies are consistently and properly applied across the
authority.

Reported June 2021

Invest to Save – Benefits Realisation Follow
Up

To review the progress made in implementing the recommendations made in the 2019/20 audit.

In progress

Medium Term Financial Strategy
Assurances

To review and provide assurance on the work being undertaken to ensure strategic planning
and prioritisation of the council’s resources.

In progress

Service Review Programme

Time set aside to contribute to the ongoing review of service delivery arrangements being
undertaken through the Medium Term Financial Strategy.

In progress

High Value Stock Management

To review the processes in place to ensure the secure management of high value stock items.
Directorates and services to be sampled on a cyclical basis.

In progress

Waste Strategy

To gain assurance that governance arrangements are in place to support the implementation of
the Waste Strategy.

Adjustment to plan included in 2021/22
audit plan following
postponement due to
COVID impact

Taxi Service

To gain assurance that licenses are issued correctly and complaints are investigated
appropriately. This includes reviewing compliance with the Suitability Policy to ensure drivers
licenses are approved in accordance with new criteria.

In progress

Leeds Cultural Trust

To provide assurance on the governance arrangements in place for the Leeds Cultural Trust.

Adjustment to plan –
future coverage to be
considered in
alignment with
programme delivery

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Strategic Investment Fund Acquisitions

To review the directorate’s approach to, and governance of the Strategic Investment Fund. The
audit will aim to provide assurance that there are appropriate controls over the acquisitions and
management and that strategic investment fund plans are adequately scrutinised, approved and
align with Council plans and wider best practice.

Status / CGAC
Meeting
In progress and to be
reported alongside
2021/22 audit work

Page 76

Agenda Item 11
Report author: Louise Ivens
Tel:0113 3788690

Counter Fraud update report
Date: 25th June 2021
Report of: Chief Officer Financial Services
Report to: Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐ Yes ☒ No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐ Yes ☒ No

What is this report about?
Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions
This report includes information on the counter fraud activities undertaken by the Internal Audit
service between the period December 2020 and March 2021.

Recommendations
Members are requested to consider and note the assurances set out in this report.

Why is the proposal being put forward?
1 This is a bi-annual update report providing assurance as to the control environment in respect
of counter fraud and corruption activity.
What impact will this proposal have?
Wards affected:
Have ward members been consulted?

☐ Yes

☒ No

2 The assurance set out in this report will inform the annual audit opinion given by the Head of
Internal Audit, and provide evidence of the ongoing review of the Council’s arrangements for
internal control supporting the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.
What consultation and engagement has taken place?
3 The suite of work undertaken within counter fraud forms part of the consultation which takes
place in developing the risk based Internal Audit plan.
What are the resource implications?
4 The work undertaken to satisfy the counter fraud and corruption requirements of the internal
audit plan do so from within existing resources.
Page 77

5 The two update reports to be received by committee each year provides assurance that
effective arrangements are in place to combat the risk of fraud and corruption within the council.
What are the legal implications?

6 The Local Government Act 1972 (s. 151) requires local authorities to make arrangements for
the proper administration of their financial affairs.
What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
7 Please see the report at Appendix 1 for further details.
Does this proposal support the council’s three Key Pillars?
☒ Inclusive Growth

☒ Health and Wellbeing

☒ Climate Emergency

8 Arrangements in respect of counter fraud and corruption support the ongoing delivery of the
council’s key objectives.

Options, timescales and measuring success
What other options were considered?
9 Details of the consideration and development of the Council’s arrangements are included in the
attached appendix.
How will success be measured?
10 A successful counter fraud and corruption environment will protect the Council’s resources,
underpin the successful delivery of the Council’s strategic objectives, and contribute to the
value for money conclusion of the Council’s external auditor when reviewing the statutory
statement of accounts.
What is the timetable for implementation?
11 Work is ongoing as set out in the appendix attached.
Appendices
12 Appendix 1 Counter Fraud update report.
Background papers
13 None.

Page 78

Appendix 1 Counter Fraud Update Report
Background
1. Local authorities have responsibilities for the effective stewardship of public money
and for safeguarding against losses due to fraud and corruption. The CIPFA 2018
Guidance on Audit Committees sets out the role of the audit committee regarding
‘countering fraud and corruption’. In summary, the committee should understand
the level of fraud risk to which the authority is exposed, and the implications for the
wider control environment. This can be undertaken by having oversight of counter
fraud plans, resources and their effectiveness. Effective counter fraud
arrangements also link to the ethical standards for members and officers that the
public expects.
2. This report is the first individual report designed to help meet this duty. Previously
the counter fraud update was included in the Internal Audit update report. This
report is designed to give assurances to committee members surrounding the
counter fraud activities undertaken during the period December 2020 – March 2021
as part of the counter fraud and corruption assurance block within the Internal Audit
Plan. This includes both the reactive and proactive approaches to the Council’s
zero tolerance to fraud and corruption.
3. Within the audit plan time is set aside to undertake investigations, or reactive work,
to look into identified instances of fraud or theft, and to investigate concerns raised
by staff or members of the public. In order to help to ensure controls are in place
to prevent fraud from occurring, we also undertake targeted proactive reviews.
These are developed from our understanding of the control environment, in
addition to our awareness of new and emerging fraud risks.
4. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) set out that the primary
responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud lies with management.
Auditors should have sufficient knowledge to recognise the indicators of possible
fraud. This is addressed by having experienced auditors with a variety of
qualifications, continuing professional development and attendance at targeted
counter fraud training. We can never be complacent, as fraud risks continually
evolve. We therefore regularly enhance and develop our counter fraud capability
by reviewing the tools and techniques that we use to detect and prevent fraud from
occurring in the first place.

Page 79

Appendix 1 Counter Fraud Update Report
Reactive Anti-Fraud Work
5. Internal Audit are the corporate owners of the Councils’ counter fraud policies.
Included in this suite of polices are the Whistleblowing and Raising Concerns
Policies. These policies provide channels for members of staff and the public to
raise their concerns about wrongdoing. These channels include the provision of a
dedicated inbox, telephone line, by post, and a ‘do it online’ form for members of
staff.
6. The following graph summarises the number of referrals received by Internal Audit
in the period by referral route.

Referrals received December - March 2021
3

4

12

Whistleblowing Policy

Raising Concerns Policy

Other

7. The referrals received through the ‘other route’ relate to those shared by external
agencies, for example the National Anti Fraud Network, or other council services
seeking advice or assistance.

Open Investigations
8. As at the 31st March 2021, 22 referrals were being investigated. Investigations are
undertaken by either Internal Audit, Human Resources, staff within Directorates or
a combination of these. In all cases Internal Audit undertake a risk assessment
upon receipt of the referral and determine the most appropriate investigative route.
The graph below illustrates the investigator for the open referrals and the following
table shows these by directorate and fraud type.

Page 80

Appendix 1 Counter Fraud Update Report

Open referrals by Investigator as at 31 March 2021
1
8
13

Directorate

Page 81

Internal Audit

Other

Appendix 1 Counter Fraud Update Report
Closed Investigations
9. A total of 14 referrals were closed during the period. The outcomes are shown on
the graph below.

Proactive Anti-Fraud Work
10. To help ensure that there is an effective counter fraud culture in place within the
council, we have included time in the counter fraud block of the Internal Audit Plan
to undertake proactive fraud reviews. These reviews consider areas identified
through various methods, including the use of best practice publications and our
internal risk assessments.
National Fraud Initiative (NFI)
11. The NFI is an exercise conducted by the Cabinet Office every two years that
matches electronic data within and between public and private sector bodies to
prevent and detect fraud and error. The work for the 2018/19 exercise has
concluded and the outcomes were reported to the Committee previously.
12. Data for the current exercise was submitted in accordance with the prescribed
timetable, and results were received for investigation in January. Relevant teams
within the Council (for example, Internal Audit, Benefits, Housing and Tenancy
Fraud) have been working through the matches on a risk basis.

Page 82

Appendix 1 Counter Fraud Update Report
13. Internal audit has overall responsibility for monitoring the progress of this exercise
and ensuring that the NFI system is updated. 15,131 matches were received and
10,025 have been reviewed and closed. Two errors have been identified resulting
in the recovery of £1,8261.
Covid 19 Business Grants
14. We have continued to undertake post payment assurance on the Covid business
grants. This work is being undertaken in accordance with government
requirements. Various data streams are being used to inform our post payment
testing. This includes information from a number of different sources comprising
NFI bank account and company status validation checks, data provided through
the Government’s ‘Spotlight’ system, and data on grant payments identified as
higher risk through our analysis. We are investigating those businesses deemed
to be higher risk and we are liaising with colleagues, partners and relevant external
bodies where the legitimacy of grant payments is unclear.
15. To date our work with the Business Rates Team has recovered payments from two
fraudulent applicants. These were cases of business impersonation. A further four
are going through recovery procedures, and one is with the Crown Prosecution
Service for a charging decision. As these grants are provided to the council to
distribute to businesses, any recovery of funds will be required to be paid back to
government.
IT proactive review
16. FMS Leeds is the Councils financial management system and due to the highly
sensitive information within the system, access is restricted and each individual
user has a unique login and password. A council wide review has been
undertaken to identify where the network has been accessed using one payroll
number, and during this access a FMS Leeds account has been logged into
using the FMS ID of another officer. Ongoing dialogue with the directorates is
continuing to identify the reasons for these mismatches and relevant action is
being taken, including reissuing the password protocol. We have reported our
findings to the Core Business Transformation Team for consideration in the
implementation of the new system.
Awareness Raising
17. Included in our counter fraud arrangements are the regular communications to staff
of current fraud risks and the signposting of where to report any concerns. During
March we raised awareness of bank mandate fraud risk to staff via Insite. The
council, in line with other organisations, continues to receive fraudulent requests
for changes to bank details and false payment requests. Regular reminders of this
risk should help to ensure that staff remain aware of the procedures to follow, so
that fraudulent payments are prevented.
18. We are currently developing a counter fraud training package for inclusion on the
Performance and Learning System. This will include information on the key fraud

1

One related to a VAT overpayment and the second related to a council tax reduction overpayment.

Page 83

Appendix 1 Counter Fraud Update Report
risks to the authority, indicators of fraud, signposting to the counter fraud policies,
and how to raise any concerns.
Self Assessment of Counter Fraud Arrangements and Strategy development
19. We have undertaken a self assessment of our arrangements against the CIPFA
Counter Fraud Assessment Tool. The key areas of this assessment consider how
as a council we:
 Acknowledge responsibility
 Identify risks
 Develop a strategy
 Provide resources
 Take Action
20. The output from this was that the Council has reached a good level of performance
against the code and has put in place effective arrangements in many aspects and
is taking positive action to manage fraud risks and actively working to improve its
resilience. This identified that there are further opportunities to strengthen our
approach through the development of a Counter Fraud Strategy.
21. A Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy has been drafted for discussion with
CGAC members later in the year. This will comprehensively address the Councils
reactive and proactive approach to tackling the risk of fraud and corruption and be
aligned to the aims, objectives and values of the Council.
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
22. In the most recent inspection report issued by the Office of Surveillance
Commissioners, it was recommended that Members should receive regular
reports about the use of the Council’s surveillance powers under RIPA.
23. The Head of Service (Legal) has confirmed that there have been no applications
for directed surveillance or covert human intelligence source (CHIS)
authorisations since the previous update was provided in February 2020. In
addition, there has been no use of the powers to obtain communications data
over the same period.

Page 84

Agenda Item 12
Report author: Kate Sadler
Tel: 0113 37 88663

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee Work
Programme 2021-22
Date: 25th June 2021
Report of: Chief Officer Financial Services
Report to: Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐ Yes ☒ No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐ Yes ☒ No

What is this report about?
Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions


This report proposes both a work programme and a development plan for the Corporate
Governance and Audit Committee.
o The work programme sets out future business for the Committee’s agenda, together
with details of when items will be presented.
o The development plan details arrangements to develop and extend the committee’s
skills and knowledge in relation to core areas identified by CIPFA.

Recommendations
a) Members are requested to
i.) consider and approve the work programme and meeting dates at Appendix 1;
ii.) consider and approve the development plan attached at Appendix 2.

Why is the proposal being put forward?
1 Regular review of the work programme will enable the Committee to manage the business
appropriately in line with the risks currently facing the Council.
2 The development plan is designed to support the work of the Committee by building on existing
skills, knowledge and experience of the committee.
What impact will this proposal have?
Wards affected: None
Have ward members been consulted?

☐ Yes

Page 85

☒ No

3 The work undertaken by the committee throughout the year will support the understanding of
the internal control and risk environment, and support the committee’s approval of the statutory
Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement.
4 The development programme set out is designed to support the Committee’s robust
examination of the assurance provided to ensure an accurate reflection of the internal control
and risk environment in the AGS.
What consultation and engagement has taken place?
5 The Work programme was approved by Corporate Governance and Audit Committee at its
meeting in March 2021. Amendment are proposed following consultation with Grant Thornton
in relation to the timetable for external audit of the accounts following amendments to the
Accounts and Audit Regulations.
6 Members are invited to comment on the proposed development plan.
What are the resource implications?
7 The work undertaken by the committee will provide assurance as to the appropriate use of
resources to deliver the council’s strategic objectives.
What are the legal implications?
8 S151 Local Government Act 1972 requires local authorities to “make arrangements for the
proper administration of its financial affairs”. The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations
2015 provide that the local authority is responsible for ensuring “a sound system of internal
control which facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims
and objectives; ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is
effective and includes effective arrangements for the management of risk”.
9 The work undertaken by the committee enables it to advise Council (the body charged with
governance) that arrangements in place are up to date, fit for purpose, communicated and
embedded, monitored and routinely complied with.
10 CIPFA’s Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (2018) is proper
practice for audit committees in the sector. The guidance sets out core knowledge required for
an effective audit committee.
What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
11 The work undertaken by the committee will provide assurance that there are arrangements in
place for the management of risk which are appropriate, proportionate, monitored and effective.
Does this proposal support the council’s three Key Pillars?
☒ Inclusive Growth

☒ Health and Wellbeing

☒ Climate Emergency

12 The work undertaken by the committee will provide assurance that arrangements for internal
control support the delivery of the council’s strategic objectives.

Page 86

Options, timescales and measuring success
What other options were considered?
13 Members are invited to recommend the inclusion of further business in the work programme, or
amendments to the development plan as necessary.
How will success be measured?
14 The Committee will provide an annual report to Council detailing how the committee has
discharged its responsibilities.
What is the timetable for implementation?
15 As set out at Appendix 1 and 2
Appendices
16 Appendix 1 – Proposed Work Programme of Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
2021/22
17 Appendix 2 – Proposed Development Plan for Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
2021/22
Background papers
18 None

Page 87

This page is intentionally left blank

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
PROPOSED WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2021-22
Date1
May
25th June 2021

30th July 20212

August
24th September 2021

October
26th November 2021

10th December 2021

Jan
4th Feb 2022

25th Mar 2022

Work Item
1
2
3
4
5
1
2
3
4
5

External Audit letter for 2019/20
External Audit update report
Internal Audit update report (Feb to April)
Fraud and Corruption update report (October to March)
PSN certification update report
Annual assurance report on procurement policies and practices
Annual assurance report on decision making
Interim Annual Governance Statement
Draft statement of accounts
External Audit Plan

1
2
3
4
5
6

Annual report on financial planning and management arrangements
Annual assurance report on treasury management systems and processes
Report on Climate Emergency Governance and Controls
Internal Audit update report (May to July)
External Audit update report
Annual assurance report on planning regulation and enforcement arrangements

1
2
3
1
2
3
4
5
6

Internal Audit annual report and opinion (including assurance in respect of RIPA)
Approval of Annual Governance Statement
Approval of audited accounts & audit report (ISA 260)
Annual assurance report on corporate risk management arrangements
Annual assurance report on corporate business continuity arrangements
Annual assurance report on corporate performance management arrangements
Internal Audit update report (August to October)
Fraud and Corruption update report (April to September)
External Audit update report

1

Joint annual report on information governance from Data Protection Officer and Caldicott
Guardian
Annual assurance report on employment policies and procedures and employee conduct
Receipt of External Audit Report setting out findings of Value for Money Review
Receipt of External Audit Letter
Update Assurance Report on Digital Information Service Controls
Annual assurance report on customer contact and satisfaction report
External Audit update report and plan
Internal Audit update report (November to January)
Receipt of Internal Audit Plan
Draft annual report to Council

2
3
4
5
6
1
2
3
4

Apr

1

The schedule of meetings is proposed but the committee reserve the right to review and amend the work programme
content and meeting dates throughout the year.
2 Items 3 & 4 may be taken at a later date if the audit and inspection regulations are amended to give an extended time
frame.

Page 89

This page is intentionally left blank

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee – Development Plan 2021/22
The Development Plan set out below responds to CIPFA Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for local Authorities and the Police (2018), and is designed to
enable Members to develop and extend their knowledge in relation to the core areas set out at Appendix C of that guidance.
Core area of
knowledge
Organisational
knowledge

Details of core knowledge required

Content






Audit
Committee
Role and
Functions




Page 91



Governance





Values of good
governance





Internal Audit




An overview of the governance structures of the authority
and decision-making processes

Knowledge of the organisational objectives and major
functions of the authority
An understanding of the audit committee’s role and place
within the governance structures.
Familiarity with the committee’s terms of reference and
accountability arrangements
Knowledge of the purpose and role of the audit
committee

Knowledge of the seven principles of the CIPFA/Solace
Framework
Knowledge of the requirements of the AGS
Knowledge of the local code of governance
Knowledge of the Seven Principles of Public Life
Knowledge of the authority’s key arrangements to uphold
ethical standards for both members and staff
Knowledge of the whistleblowing arrangements in the
authority
An awareness of the key principles of the PSIAS and the
LGAN
Knowledge of the arrangements for delivery of the
internal audit service in the authority and how the role of
the head of internal audit is fulfilled

Lead
officer
Kate
Sadler

Delivery
method
Written
material

Timetable

Tim
Rollett
Kate
Sadler

Remote
meeting

16th June

Kate
Sadler

Written
material /
Committee
discussion

July &
September

Fraud and corruption workshop

Louise
Ivens

Remote
meeting

October



Louise
Booth

Written
material /
Committee
discussion

Ongoing




Introduction to Exercising the
Democratic mandate (description
of Council structures)
Members guide to decision making
BCP plan on a page

Introductory workshop:
An effective audit committee (CIPFA
Guidance)
 purpose
 functions
 resources
 independence
 skills
AGS & covering report

Review of Corporate Governance Code
and Framework
AGS & covering report



Regular Internal Audit update
reports
Annual Audit Opinion

June

Core area of
knowledge
External Audit

Details of core knowledge required

Content



External Audit Workshop
 Introduction
 Role
 Independence
 Redmond
 NAO
 VfM
 Regular update briefings
 Annual Report
 Contribution to committee
meetings
Accounts Briefing






Counter fraud



Page 92

Financial
Management
and
Accounting







Risk
Management





Knowledge of the role and functions of the external
auditor and who currently undertakes this role
Knowledge of the key reports and assurances that
external audit will provide
Knowledge about arrangements for the appointment of
auditors and quality monitoring undertaken

Awareness of the financial statements that a local
authority must produce and the principles it must follow
to produce them
Understanding of good financial management principles
Knowledge of how the organisation meets the
requirements of the role of the CFO, as required by The
Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government
(CIPFA, 2016) and the CIPFA Statement on the Role of
Chief Financial Officers in Policing (2018)
An understanding of the main areas of fraud and
corruption risk to which the organisation is exposed
Knowledge of the principles of good fraud risk
management practice in accordance with the Code of
Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption
(CIPFA, 2014)
Knowledge of the organisation’s arrangements for tackling
fraud
Understanding of the principles of risk management,
including linkage to good governance and decision making
Knowledge of the risk management policy and strategy of
the organisation
Understanding of risk governance arrangements, including
the role of members and of the audit committee

Lead
officer
Gareth
Mills

Delivery
method
Remote
meeting

Timetable

Ongoing

Mary
Hasnip

Written
material /
Committee
discussion
Remote
meeting

July

July

Annual assurance report on
arrangements for financial
management and planning

Richard
Ellis

Written
material /
Committee
discussion

September

Fraud and Corruption Workshop

Louise
Ivens

Remote
meeting

October

Risk management workshop

Tim
Rollett

Remote
meeting

January

Core area of
knowledge
Treasury

Details of core knowledge required

Content



Annual assurance report on treasury
management systems and processes




Effective Scrutiny of Treasury Management is an
assessment tool for reviewing the arrangements for
undertaking scrutiny of treasury management. The key
knowledge areas identified are:
o regulatory requirements
o treasury risks
o the organisation’s treasury
management strategy
o the organisation’s policies and
procedures in relation to treasury management

Lead
officer
Bhupinder
Chana

Delivery
method
Written
material /
Committee
discussion

Timetable
September

Page 93

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13
Report author: Louise Whitworth
Tel: 0113 37 83978

PSN Certification – Update Report
Date: 25th June 2021
Report of: the Data Protection Officer
Report to: Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐ Yes ☒ No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☒ Yes ☐ No

The information in the Appendix concerns vulnerabilities in the Council’s ICT systems, and as this relates to
the “business affairs” of the Council, it falls within the category of “exempt” information in Rule 10.4.3 of
the Access to Information Procedure Rules. This information can only be treated as exempt if and so long,
as in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the
public interest in disclosing the information. Whilst it is accepted there is significant public interest in the
public being assured that the Council’s ICT systems are generally secure, and fit for purpose, the disclosure
of detailed information about vulnerabilities in the Council’s systems could facilitate cyber-attacks by
revealing which attacks could be most effective, and the safety and security of those systems and the data
they contain could be seriously endangered as a result. Therefore, it is considered that the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing this information.
What is this report about?
Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions


This report provides Corporate Governance and Audit Committee with an update on Leeds
City Council’s readiness for Public Services Network (PSN) compliance submission.

Recommendations
a) Corporate Governance and Audit Committee are asked to receive the PSN Certification
Update Report covering the period from February 2021 to June 2021 and note the updates
with regards to the PSN remediation work currently undertaken by the Digital and
Information Service
Why is the proposal being put forward?
1 The 2020 PSN submission was deferred with Cabinet Office due to COVID-19 pressures.
2 An action plan, documenting all the outstanding work to be completed and a firm submission
date of July 2021, was submitted to the Cabinet Office on 31st December 2020. This action
plan was signed off by the Chief Digital and Information Officer and shared with the Director for
Resources and Housing and with the previous Chair of this Committee.
3 The formation of the Cyber Team late last year and the implementation of new governance
arrangements for compliance related projects mean that the Council is on track to make a
compliant PSN submission in July 2021. Details are set out at Appendix 1 (Cyber Team
Actions) and Appendix 2 (Projects with an impact on a compliant PSN submission)
Page 95

What impact will this proposal have?
Wards affected:
Have ward members been consulted?

☐ Yes

☒ No

4 Completion of the work detailed as described will enable a compliant PSN submission in
accordance with timescales agreed with the Cabinet Office.
What consultation and engagement has taken place?
5 Significant consultation and engagement has taken place with all service areas, information
management professionals, representatives from all directorates via representatives of DIS
Hubs and Information Management Board members
What are the resource implications?
6 All DIS projects undergo a rigorous evaluation and impact assessment process to ensure value
for money.
What are the legal implications?
7 Delegated authority for relevant functions sits with the Director of Resources and Senior
Information Risk Owner and has been sub-delegated to the Chief Digital and Information Officer
under the heading “Knowledge and information management” in the Director of Resources and
Housing Sub-Delegation Scheme.
What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
8 There is a medium to low, managed risk that Leeds City Council will not be in a position to
make a compliant PSN submission by July 2021.
9 The internally managed risk of not getting the right technical resource allocated onto the work
required:
Mitigation – The Cyber Team remains in place and ‘business as usual’ activities are monitored
by the Information Security Assurance and Compliance Board (ISAaC). ISAaC plans work in
advance in 8 week tranches, prior to which resources for each tranche are approved by DIS
Senior Leadership Team. With regards to projects, resources are allocated by the DIS
Resourcing Team. Resourcing issues are escalated by the Project Managers to the Digital
Portfolio Board for resolution.
10 The risk that compliance projects are not given the appropriate prioritisation:
Mitigation – The CDIO has been tasked in his first month to develop a prioritisation matrix for
digital projects to present to CLT for approval. At the writing of this report, the matrix has still to
be approved, however the draft version states that compliance projects are priority one. The
DIS Compliance Board monitors all DIS projects which have a compliance outcome. The DPO
is the Chair of this board, reporting and escalating into the Digital Portfolio Board.
11 The Council may be put into remediation measures by the Cabinet Office should compliance
not be met.
Page 96

Does this proposal support the council’s three Key Pillars?
☒ Inclusive Growth

☒ Health and Wellbeing

☒ Climate Emergency

12 The Council has a wide range of compliance programmes for General Data Protection
Regulations, Public Services Network Information Assurance, Payment Card Industry Data
Security Standards and Data Security and Protection Toolkit.
13 Non-compliance may affect the achievement of Best Council Plan objectives and the aims of
council policies.

Options, timescales and measuring success
What other options were considered?
14 None – the council requires PSN certification and must therefore make a compliant PSN
submission in accordance with agreed timescales.
How will success be measured?
15 The Council will receive PSN certification.
What is the timetable for implementation?
16 Work and projects are still on-going, however the Council is on-track to make a compliant PSN
submission by the end July 2021.
Appendices
17 Appendix 1 – Cyber Team Actions
18 Appendix 2 - Projects with an impact on a compliant PSN submission

Background papers
19 None

Page 97

This page is intentionally left blank

Exempt / Confidential Under Access to
Information Procedure Rules 10.4 (3)

Document is Restricted

Page 99

This page is intentionally left blank

